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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group
Limited, | hereby present the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

2021 was a year full of “change” and “hope”. With the gradual
stabilization of the pandemic at the beginning of the year and under
the relatively stable monetary policy, both the consumer demand and
corporate profits had seen recovery, the capital market also regained
confidence, the Hong Kong stock market once hit a high of over
31,000 points from the level of 27,000 points at the beginning of the
year. Yet, with multiple factors such as the surge in US bond vyields,
the rising inflation which raised concerns about entering into the
interest rate hike cycle and the arrival of the post-pandemic era,
Chinese high-yield US dollar bonds continued to fluctuate and
decline, the Hong Kong capital market experienced a sharp decline.
Confronting the drastic changes in the market, we responded
scientifically and actively sought changes and promoted the strategic
transformation of the Company from a financial investment group to
an industrial investment group steadily and firmly, so as to devote
ourselves to maximizing the long-term investment value of the
Company and devote ourselves to a healthy, sustainable and quality
development path. Under the leadership of the Board, all employees
of the Company rose to the challenges and forged ahead. As of the
end of the year, the strategic transformation of the Group began to
take effects, which achieved stable and orderly structural adjustments
and further optimization of asset quality, and various operating and
financial indicators were developed steadily.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETE®HE (F)

CHAPTER 1: PRACTICE AND EFFICIENCY — OUR
MANAGEMENT MECHANISM

We ensure vitality and progress by building an efficient decision-
making system, a flat organizational structure, and a professional and
collaborative operation mechanism. We also focus on optimizing the
comprehensive monitoring and management of our subsidiaries to

further improve our corporate governance.

Over the past two years, the Group’s governance structure has been
continuously optimised. In terms of shareholders, the Group has
attached great importance to two-way communication with
shareholders, obtained the full support of significant shareholders
with the concept of common development and complemented
advantageous resources. In terms of the Board, the Group has
actively implemented the director diversity policy, fully capitalised on
the different professional knowledge, insights, skills and experience
of its directors, and achieved coordinated development. A new
strategic development committee was established to timely and
dynamically adjust business strategies based on the situation, so as to
form our strategic focus. In terms of specific operation and
implementation, the Group has established a daily operation and
management system with the management as the core, which was
responsible for the overall operation and strategy implementation, so

as to form response capabilities.

In order to promote strategic transformation, the Group implemented
the investment business division system. The Company has
established three business divisions, namely fixed income,
standardized equity and industrial investment, concentrated the
original decentralized investment and research forces into business
divisions, realized the business matrix with business focus and
connection, and established professional investment capabilities. At
the same time, the Group also optimized the original investment
decision-making process and established a professional investment
committee for each of the three business divisions to improve the

quality and efficiency of investment decision-making.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TFE®HE (&)

The rapid development of business and the iterative operation of
organizational structure required the Group to build the most
streamlined process and system. Through continuous exploration and
optimization, the Group has established a streamlined and clear
authorization management system focusing on core business
processes, core finance, human resources and internal control
management processes to reduce the layers of decision-making. We
reconstructed the management and control systems of the Group’s
headquarter and subsidiaries, enhanced the management and control
capabilities on key matters, and achieved the orderly operation and
efficient coordination of the Group's headquarters and business

units.

CHAPTER 2 COLLABORATIVE FOCUS -
OUR BUSINESS INVESTMENT

We have set the goal of strategic transformation into an excellent
industrial investment group. Under the strategic transformation policy
of “specialization, concentration, marketization and
institutionalization”, we continue to optimize the allocation of
existing assets, continue to increase the proportion of industrial
investment, and formed a new asset allocation pattern in which the
fixed income business contributes stable profits in the current period,
industrial investment increases the net assets of the Company and

generates sustained and stable cash flows.

Under the guidance of this strategy, the Group’s business
development was based on the Group's risk and return appetite,
genetic culture and investment capabilities, targeting industries such
as new energy, new technology, new consumption and big health,
selecting high-quality assets with high growth potential, and using
diversified equity and debt investment instruments to obtain growth
value. Each of the operating segments conducted certain investment
projects during the Reporting Period, showing a good development
momentum.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETE®HE (F)

In terms of standard business investment, the Group adopted a
prudent investment strategy to carefully select targets, dynamically
adjusted the retreat and position, and achieved a better-than-average
yield in the Group’s equity and public debt business portfolio under
the situation of a significant drop in the Hong Kong market return. In
terms of non-standard investment business, the Company actively
cooperated with industrial policies and continuously explored high-
quality investment opportunities. Some high-quality equity projects
invested by the Company have a great hope to be listed overseas in
this year. Taking advantage of its own factoring business, the Group
established a limited partnership with two listed companies under
Shandong Hi-Speed Group to engage in new infrastructure related
business, and achieved certain results in business linkage with
Shandong Hi-Speed Group, the controlling shareholder. In terms of
licensed business, the Company issued the first QFLP fund securities
product in Qingdao High-tech Zone of Shandong Province, and made
great breakthroughs in third-party asset management business, with
investment capabilities favored by large state-owned principals. At
the same time, there were highlights in securities business and
investment and financing of international business. In addition, the
Group adhered to the concept of long-term value investment,
continued to be optimistic about the positive development of China’s
economy, actively integrated into the new development pattern, and
was actively promoting the equity merger and acquisition projects in
the clean energy field that were strongly supported by the state,
seizing the strategic opportunity of “dual carbon” and closely
aligning with the new energy development strategies of Shandong
Province and the resource endowment of the main industry chain of
Shandong Hi-Speed Group, so as to step out a solid step in the first

year of transformation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TFE®HE (&)

CHAPTER 3 STRINGENCY, PRUDENCE,
METICULOSITY AND PRAGMATISM —
OUR RISK MANAGEMENT EFFORTS

Risk compliance management is the lifeline of modern financial
investment institutions and the cornerstone for achieving high-quality
development. Confronting the complicated external environment, we
adhered to the bottom line of risk compliance, strengthened the
mechanism and capacity building for early warning, prevention,
control and disposal of risks, and achieved dynamic balance in
stabilizing growth and controlling risks, thus safeguarding the high-

quality development of business.

On one hand, the Group has established an internal control system
with comprehensive risk management as the core that matched the
investment decision-making process. We revised and improved risk
management systems, implemented negative list and concentration
management for credit business, and adhered to prudent and stable
risk appetite. A scientific risk control and early warning mechanism
has been established, and the management and business teams
would regularly review the situation and take effective measures in a
timely manner to minimize potential risks. During the Reporting
Period, the Group established an internal audit department under the
guidance of the Audit Committee of the Board, which served as the
third line of defense for the comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, and continued to improve the overall risk

management capability.

On the other hand, we strictly reviewed and controlled incremental
risks. The Group implemented a rigorous and standardized
investment decision-making procedures, and strictly implemented the
decision-making process of project initiation, due diligence, risk pre-
examination, investment decision-making committee, Executive
Committee, and the Board (if necessary) for each investment project.
All members present at each decision-making stage shall express
their opinions and vote independently to ensure that the entire
decision-making process is prudent and compliant, and the risks of
investment targets are controllable. Through the team’s professional
research and judgment capabilities, the transaction structure design
and the system of business review and decision-making, potential
risks arising from new business investment were eliminated from the

source.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETE®HE (F)

CHAPTER 4 JOIN HANDS TO MARCH FORWARD
— OUR ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE

Talents are the first element of the development of a financial
investment enterprise, while the culture could determine the
cohesion and flexibility of the organization. In terms of the
construction of the talent system, we have always strived to attract
talents from all four corners of the country. We believe in the
strength of professionalism, and expect to gather excellent talents
together to achieve the long-term goal by adhering to the common

corporate values.

In recent years, the Group has actively attracted outstanding talents
to move forward. A group of employees who recognized the Group's
organizational culture, with strong sense of responsibility and
outstanding capabilities were introduced to deeply cultivate the
industrial segments. The Company has established a market-
competitive remuneration incentive mechanism based on
performance, ability and values to fully ensure that the employees'’
contribution shall match their income, and to attract and retain
talents to the greatest extent.

At the same time, we shall continue to firmly promote team
optimization and iteration. We have launched a comprehensive
employee training system to help employees to grow rapidly. We
paid attention to the training and appointment of outstanding
employees and basic level employees, and have initially established a
tier system for enterprise talents. The Group shall optimize employees
whose performance were below expectations, whose development
speed were lagging behind the Group’s needs and whose values did
not match that of ours, so as to maintain the enthusiasm and vitality
of the team.

The Group always insisted on integrating corporate culture into the
whole process of business development to enhance the cultural
identity of employees. Based on the actual situation of the enterprise,
the enterprise spirit of “took the initiative” was established, and the
core values of the enterprise were promoted through publicity,
implementation, 360-degree evaluation and other methods, so that
the personal career growth and value realization of employees can

complement the development of the enterprise and vise versa.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TFE®HE (&)

Looking forward to 2022, both “change” and “hope” will still exist
concurrently. In the deeply changing market, we have accumulated
and deposited valuable experience, cultivated and honed our core
investment and research team, and formed a distinctive investment
concept and style. However, we are also acutely aware that the
operation process and rules would need to be optimized, the
diversified investment ability in transformation development and
business restructuring needs to be enriched and improved, and our
corporate mission and staff culture recognition still need to be honed
and settled.

Our journey ahead is full of hardships and would not be a short one.
But if we keep going, we will reach our destination. We are confident
in the tiny power at the very beginning. The Board and all employees
of the Group will work hard with hope and determination. We will
continue to adhere to our core development concept of “conduct
compliance prudentially, develop steadily and healthily”, follow the
rules of the market, respect market risks and respond to market
opportunities, so as to achieve a new pattern of comprehensive
development of the Group and create greater value for all

shareholders, investors, employees and stakeholders of the society.

Wang Xiaodong
Executive Director and Chairman
28 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWHEDN

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded the revenue of
approximately HK$1,065,661,000 as compared with approximately
HK$1,272,354,000 for the Previous Period, representing a decrease
of approximately 16.24% year-over-year; gross profit of
approximately HK$738,631,000, as compared with approximately
HK$808,181,000 for the Previous Period, representing an decrease
of approximately 8.61% year-over-year; profit for the period
amounted to approximately HK$11,058,000 as compared with loss
of the year of approximately HK$18,307,000 for the Previous Period.
The aforementioned turnaround in the Company’s profit for the
Reporting Period was primarily attributable to the substantial decrease
in impairment losses on finance lease receivables and loans
receivables (net of reversal) of approximately HK$758,235,000 or
68% from an aggregate of approximately HK$1,118,119,000
recorded in the Previous Period to an aggregate of approximately
HK$359,884,000 recorded in the Reporting Period. However, the
positive effect of the aforementioned reduced impairment losses on
finance lease receivables and loans receivables was partially offset
primarily by the substantial decrease of approximately
HK$789,732,000 from the fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$802,375,000
recorded in the Previous Period to the fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$12,643,000 recorded in the Reporting Period. The basic loss per
share attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$1.31 cents, as compared with the basic loss per share of

approximately HK$1.17 cents for the Previous Period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$22,950,451,000 (2020: HK$24,966,194,000) and
total liabilities of approximately HK$14,337,948,000 (2020:
HK$15,309,446,000), and therefore net assets of approximately
HK$8,612,503,000 (2020: HK$9,656,748,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED N (&)

In view of the prudent financial and risk management measures
taken by the Group, the Group believes that COVID-19 pandemic has
not had a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position
and operating results during the Reporting Period. The Group will
closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the capital
market, and will make dynamic assessments on and timely
adjustments to the financial position and business operations of the
Group.

MARKET REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, major economies around the world
regained momentum as vaccination rates increased and business
activity gradually recovered, while the economic impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic receded slightly and the global economic
environment generally improved. However, tensions between the U.S.
and China and geopolitical issues are still a concern. Moreover, the
relatively accommodative monetary policies and massive fiscal
stimulus programs introduced by governments to boost their
economies and maintain financial stability have led to a sustained
surge in commodity and energy prices, including the price of oil and
natural gas, triggering significant inflation. According to Fitch
International, inflation was at multi-year highs in a number of
countries and regions around the world in 2021. Consumer prices in
the U.S. rose 6.8% year-over-year in November 2021, representing a
new high point in 39 years. Inflation in the Eurozone was 4.9%, the
highest level since the creation of the Eurozone. Germany’s inflation
rate was 5.2%, representing a new high point in 29 years. Inflation
in emerging markets also rose sharply. Turkey, Brazil and Russia have
seen a inflation rate of 21.3%, 10.7% and 8.4%, respectively. The
broad-based global inflation picture signals a pending problem of
high commodity prices and a mismatch between supply and demand.
Inflationary pressures continue to rise, triggering further tightening
expectations at the U.S. Federal Reserve. Since November 2021, the
U.S. Federal Reserve has announced that it will start to reduce the
size of its bond purchases, and the capital markets are expecting that
the U.S. Federal Reserve may enter into an interest rate hike in the
near future, adding uncertainty to the pace of the global economic
recovery. Interest rate hikes may cause global regional financing costs
and debt pressure to rise, bringing uncertainty to the market

sentiment of major risk assets, stocks, bonds and commodity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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During the Reporting Period, the PRC government continued to
adopt prompt and effective prevention and control measures to
effectively control the spread of the pandemic and ensure steady
economic development after the recovery. According to information
circulated by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s
economy grew by 8.1% year-on-year for the year 2021, exceeding
the government’s target of “GDP growth of over 6% " for the same
year. By quarter, the economy grew by 18.3% in the first quarter,
7.9% in the second quarter, 4.9% in the third quarter and 4.0% in
the fourth quarter. The data shows that China’s economic
development continued to regain stability in 2021, with economic
recovery and epidemic control standards maintaining a leading
position in the world and key indicators achieving the central
government’s expectations. The People’s Bank of China lowered the
reserve requirement ratio for bank deposits by 0.5% in each of July
and December 2021, striving to maintain a reasonable level of
liquidity, to match the growth rate of money supply and social
financing with the nominal economic growth rate, to support the
development of small and medium-sized enterprises, and to create a
suitable monetary and financial environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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BUSINESS REVIEW E$AEI
Summary of the contribution of each business BT o AR A< 52 B HY BR B A U Al B K
segment to the Group'’s profit before taxation ZHE

For the year ended
31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
a)  Standard investment business' a) IEEREER 923,854
b)  Non-standard investment business' b) JEfEEREER 495,216
c) License business? o) FHRRER? (84,144)
d)  Financial leasing d @EMRE (985,773)
e)  Financial technology’ e) FEem’ (224,132)
Segment results DEPELE 125,021
Notes: HaE -
1. This segment was included in the investments in securities segment during the 1. EFRBUBHIBEREFREDE

corresponding period of last year.

2. Money lending segment have been renamed to license business segment during 2. EFERBNREEB D BEERR/FEELD

the corresponding period of last year. o

3. The business related to the asset trading platform reported in financial technology 3. EFRBERBEERIFERNEERSF A
segment and the business related to the securities brokerage services previously HEAEBURRBEFREDBE2ROZFLL
reported in investments in securities segment have been transferred to license RIS BEBBRERFEEBIE -

business segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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a)

Standard investment business

The Group engages in standard investment business including
equity and fixed income investment by self-owned funds. Since
2021, the cycles in the PRC and foreign countries were further
differentiated. For the PRC, due to proper prevention and
control of the pandemic, the PRC was among the first to enter
the post-COVID-19 era. However, the difficulty in boosting
consumption and the slowdown of economic growth, coupled
with the frequent release of control policies and the
introduction of regulatory policies in respect of education,
internet and real estate industry beyond expectation in the
second half of 2021, all led to deterioration of confidence in
the market, while the continuous expansion of PPI-CPI scissors
differentials led to the increasing downward pressure on the
economy. For foreign countries, facing the challenges of both
supply and demand and coupled with the fiercer inflation
abroad, the main central banks tightened monetary policies at
a faster pace, resulting in a general increase in benchmark
interest rates. The uncertainties of domestic policies and the
marginal tightening of overseas macro-liquidity environment
caused significant decline in equity market. Through a mixture
of quantitative and qualitative approach, the Group assessed
those structural, policies, cyclical and sudden events in the
macro-economy and made corresponding adjustments to
portfolio positions and position structure, which mitigated the
challenges caused by the regulatory policies beyond
expectation, the default in real estate debts and the marginal
tightening of liquidity, thus the yields only recorded a low
single-digit loss, but already outperformed the indices
significantly. During the Reporting Period, the standard
investment business recorded a loss before tax of approximately
HK$146,817,000, as compared to a profit before tax of
approximately HK$923,854,000 for the Previous Period.

a)

SEREXK

AEBBBEEECHITHEZE
REWRESZEREER - 2021
FLAR - REEGINEHE -2 H
ftodhBAIm: BAEBHIES
EOREEANREBEHER  EH
HBEHIRR - B RME - N
Z221F THEFAEBREE D
E HE DBE HESTER
TEHEEBREXRBEL r TRMIHE
Ly FIFEPPI-CPIB T E R ERK -
KETNTEONE - B4hmE - 2
IEATRMAEEE  BINBIR
MEFARE  FERTTNRKE
BEHRE HEEMNEEZERELEHA - H
N IR SR T B T B E I B 08 AN R R
MBI BRI RS R T IS AR
TH - AEEBBTERT AL
EMFEHEBEEREBENE - K
M AHMARRE M EGHET
THH - HEEBENMFEAEE
TTHEMNAZE  —ER2E RN
THREHEERR  MEGBEHNU
ERBEERNEEEEREEE
ROEE  RaXEHSEEAME
BB BNRIERRES - WREH
N REREEBESHAEERLY
146,817,000 8 7L * MEFRBE
R ATEF47923,854,000/8 7T °
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b)

18

Non-standard investment business

The non-standard investment business of the Group is mainly
engaged in the direct investment business, including investment
in debt instruments, unlisted bonds, notes, unlisted equity
investments and investment funds. In 2021, leveraging on its
resource advantages and extensive experience of the team, the
Group grasped market opportunities to participate in more
quality non-standard investment projects and make pre-
emptive moves in the market. Meanwhile, the Group assessed
various risk factors diligently and strictly controlled the
threshold criteria to prevent credit default risks, and decreased
the scale of new investments of non-standard investment
business proactively during the Reporting Period, so as to
minimize the risks brought by market changes. During the
Reporting Period, the non-standard investment business
recorded profit before tax of approximately HK$253,632,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 48.78%
from approximately HK$495,216,000 for the Previous Period.
The decrease was mainly due to the Group decreased the scale
of new investments of non-standard investment business
proactively after considering the changes in overall market

environment.

b)

HEEREXE

REEMFEZEREEBEZZE AR
EEEREXY  PDEREEKI
H LmESF BER - FLTK
AIEERGERESE - 2021F + K
EEEREEFMNEREZULEK
MEELEH MEMSHRELHEK
ZEBEEFELEKEERER  WighE™
Bk AR AEBEERETHS
BRBEE  REIEEEARE -
e ERAENERE  TREHA
FEBRN T FEE LR E F A
BERE - UBRETSS2EERDY
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B3R bR T AT i A £9253,632,000 %
JC B AT [E EI4495,216,000%8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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o)

License business )

The Group conducts license business in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. It currently holds Licenses 1, 4, 5, 6 and 9 issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and a
Hong Kong money lender license, as well as domestic licenses
for Qualified Foreign Limited Partner (QFLP) fund managers and
financial asset trading platforms. The Group serves corporate
and individual clients in Mainland China, Hong Kong and the
world, providing them with integrated financial services related
to crossborder investment and financing needs in Mainland

China and Hong Kong, including:

o Asset management business: The Group provides high-
net-worth clients with cross-border asset management
and global asset allocation services through innovative
policies such as QFIl and RQFII. In addition, the Group has
an investment management team with extensive
experience, which can tailor investment portfolios to
clients according to their different risk tolerance,
investment needs and goals. The Group is committed to
providing personalized and high-quality investment
services, so that the clients’ investment returns can
achieve a perfect balance among risk control, asset value
preservation and asset appreciation. The Group is striving
to improve its own research capabilities and increase
senior staff, and it is expected that the revenue of this
segment will be positively affected;

REIRS RS

ESIEE S
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20

Securities brokerage business: CSFG International
Securities Limited (“CSFG International Securities”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has an
outstanding team to provide customers with fast and
accurate market information and considerate and
professional service in respect of capital market,
leveraging on their expertise and intensive market
experience as well as flexible and reliable internet
transaction methods. In addition to the securities dealing
and brokerage business in the Hong Kong securities
market, CSFG International Securities also provides
margin, underwriting of stocks and bonds, subscription
of new shares, withdrawal and deposit of stocks and

custodian services;

Structured financing business: The structured financing
business of the Group focus on commercial loans with
“short term, collateralized and low risk”, aiming to utilize
funds from its financial lending business in a more

effective way;

Advisory services and asset trading platform: The Group
provides "asset trading and integrated services” for
various financial institutions, non-financial institutions
and investors, and strives to satisfy their demand by
continual innovation of business models, product services,
financial instruments as well as investment and financing
approaches, with an aim to providing international and
professional across-the-board services for various asset
trading, registration, custody, trading, financing, and

settlement of related products.
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d)

e)

During the Reporting Period, the license business of the Group
recorded profit of approximately HK$17,101,000, as compared
to loss of approximately HK$84,144,000 for the Previous
Period. The turnaround was mainly attributable to the fact that
the Group continued to adjust and optimize the business
strategies of advisory services and asset trading platforms to
further minimize operational risks, and conduct related license

business by adhering to prudent and steady development.

Financial leasing

During the Reporting Period, the financial leasing of the Group
recorded a loss of approximately HK$323,210,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 67.21% year-over-
year. The significant decrease in loss was mainly attributable to
substantial decrease of the impairment loss of financial leasing

receivables.

Financial technology

During the Reporting Period, the financial technology business
recorded revenue of approximately HK$18,671,000, as
compared to revenue of approximately HK$111,828,000 in the
Previous Period. To further strengthen the Group’s cash flow
and liquidity position and to optimize and distribute existing
resources for future development of other business segments,
the Group disposed of all the shares in Coastal Silk Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on 7 April
2021, and recorded gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$171,135,000. Upon completion of the
Disposal, the Group no longer holds the business of financial
technology. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated on 7 April 2021 and the Company’s 2021

interim report.

d)

e)
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Future Prospects

Looking ahead to 2022, international financial markets continue to
be concerned about the direction of monetary policy to be exercised
by the central banks of developed economies such as the U.S. Federal
Reserve. Investors are currently watching the expected U.S. Federal
Reserve rate hike cycle and the impact of the U.S. Federal Reserve's
balance sheet reduction on financial markets, the U.S. dollar, and U.S.
long bonds, which may increase volatility in various asset markets.
According to the minutes of the monetary policy meeting of U.S.
Federal Reserve in December 2021, some Federal Reserve officials
have indicated that they are considering to bring forward the first
interest rate hike at the earliest of March 2022. This may trigger
some central banks around the world to follow the U.S. monetary
policy, suspend the provision of new liquidity, start to raise interest
rates and shrink their balance sheets to avoid depreciation of their
own currencies. The fact that major economies around the world are
following the U.S. in raising interest rates will create uncertainty for

the global economic recovery.

Last year, China's economy was the first to rebound from the
epidemic, and is expected to strive to maintain stability this year. The
communigué of the Central Economic Work Conference at the end
of the 2021 showed that China’s economy is currently facing triple
pressure of “shrinking demand, supply shock and weakening
expectations”, which requires that in 2022, “the top priority of
economic work should be stabilization and progress should be
sought in the midst of stability, and all regions and government
departments shall take up the responsibility of stabilizing the macro
economy, all parties should actively launch policies that are conducive
to economic stability, and policy development should be appropriately
advanced.” This shows that in 2022, China’s economic work is
expected to focus on stabilizing growth and relaxing monetary and
fiscal policies. After China lowered the reserve requirement ratio
twice last year, the space for adjustment of the reserve requirement
ratio is now slightly narrower, but the authorities could still adjust it
according to the economic and financial situation and the needs of
macroeconomic control.
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As for the RMB exchange rate, the People’s Bank of China has
recently forecasted that RMB may face depreciation pressure due to
the “four differential changes” of the narrowing of domestic and
foreign currency spreads, changes in economic growth differential,
narrowing of external trade differential and reversal of risk
expectation differential, reminding enterprises to cope with the risk
of RMB depreciation and indicating that it will continue to adjust its

monetary policy according to the prevailing economic conditions.

In terms of the stock market, U.S. stocks are expected to fluctuate
due to the interest rate hike cycle, and U.S. stock indices such as the
S&P 500 are unlikely to continue their trend of high annual returns of
nearly 29% as they did last year. The biggest risk to the stock market
today is the widespread pandemic caused by Omicron, a new strain
of novel corona virus, while the U.S. Federal Reserve’s tightening
policy is likely to lead to alternating sentiment in global financial
markets. As for A-shares and Hong Kong stocks, China’s
macroeconomic growth is expected to be stable and corporate
earnings growth is expected to remain stable in the middle of the
year. Domestic fiscal, monetary, credit and industrial policies are
expected to remain accommodative. While there are bubbles in
individual sector valuations, most valuations are still relatively
reasonable or at an undervalued level. Therefore, the systemic risk of
the A-share market should be relatively small this year. On the bond
front, the prospect of a U.S. Federal Reserve rate hike is a foregone
conclusion. The overall volatility of the US dollar investment grade
bond market will remain stable. As for the RMB government bond
market, it is expected that the U.S. Federal Reserve will raise interest
rates this year and the spread between the US and China may narrow
to a certain extent, and the RMB exchange rate is under pressure to
depreciate. Therefore, the demand for active allocation of Chinese

bonds by foreign institutions may be affected by the downside.
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The COVID-19 has not affected the operations of the Group.
Confronting the relatively complex external environment, the Group
will pay close attention to the potential impact of the pandemic on
the market and its business and will continue to take “conduct
compliance prudentially, develop steadily and healthily” as the core
value for our development and take risk prevent and control as the
first priority of its development, and establish a comprehensive
internal control system with a comprehensive risk management
system as the core, adhere to the bottom line of compliance and
promote the steady development of its work. The Group will actively
respond to challenges, leverage its strengths, and optimise and
consolidate internal and external resources to enhance coordination
and synergy across all business lines and commit to the exploration
of new opportunities for sustainable growth while strengthening the
foundation of its advantageous businesses.

The Group established the Strategic Development Committee on 28
July 2021 and formally proposed the strategic transformation goal of
“becoming an excellent industrial investment company” with the
strategic transformation roadmap of “professionalized, specialized,
marketized and institutionalized”, and formulated a strategic
development plan for the coming five years. In 2022, in accordance
with the established strategic development planning, the Group will
establish a stable and efficient corporate governance and core team
to promote the work of each business, continue to deepen
investment opportunities in relation to industrial investments and
further strengthen its overall investment research and project
development capabilities, in order to strive for more quality projects
and investment opportunities, enlarge and consolidate the net assets
of the Company and realize a virtuous circle of self-development of
the Group.

The Group will continuously consolidate the market positioning of
each subsidiary to strengthen the differentiated competitive
advantages of each subsidiary. At present, the business of the Group
covers the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore, with diversified operating
licenses and business forms. The Group will make full use of the
market advantages of each region to deepen the overall synergy
among its subsidiaries and cross-border linkage, so as to provide
clients with comprehensive and integrated services for both domestic
and overseas matters. The Group also encourages its subsidiaries to
fully utilise their endogenous power and strengthen their investment

capabilities to promote the overall efficiency of the Group.
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In addition, the Group will continue to deepen the internal synergy

with the subsidiaries of Shandong Hi-Speed Group, fully utilise the

resources advantage of Shandong Hi-Speed Group, and strive to seek

development on a higher platform and a broader market. As an

overseas listed company, the Group will fully leverage its advantages

of professional teams to properly carry out ancillary businesses such as

asset securitisation, internationalisation, and overseas investment and

financing. Meanwhile, benefited from the resource advantages given

to the Group by Shandong Hi-Speed Group, the Group will deeply

integrate its own advantages of the market-oriented mechanism to

obtain complementary elements of operation and development, so as

to achieve a win-win cooperation for both sides.

Development strategies of business segments:

a)

Standard investment business, although the market volatility
has intensified due to the effects of geopolitical situation and
relevant policies, the current economic fundamentals of
Mainland China and Hong Kong have not changed
significantly, and the medium-term positive trend of the market
remains unchanged. The irrational decline in the market brings
opportunities for the Group to invest in outstanding companies,
and these companies will eventually win out in the long-term
competition in the industry. Adhering to the long-term value
investment philosophy, the Group is committed to identifying
high-quality companies with long-term performance growth
and companies with long-term advantages in all walks of life.
In addition, in the current situation of increasing credit market
polarization, the Group will conduct in-depth credit mining and
investment in some oversold ultra-short-term investment
targets, and industries that are improving with less market
attention under the premise of risk control. For individual
corporate bonds with relatively strong financing ability and
good quality, the Group will make appropriate leverage
operations to increase return, and seize the possible trading
opportunities of some high-quality enterprises under the
market fluctuation caused by special events. At the same time,
according to the market environment sentiment, the Group will
make a small amount of diversified investment in fully market-
oriented transactions with the operation of “micro-precision +

diversification + high turnover”.
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b)

)
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Nonstandard investment business, the Group will continue
to strengthen risk management and control measures,
strengthen post-investment management of projects, conduct
regular scenario analysis and stress tests, comprehensively sort
out existing customers, and strengthen cooperation with high-
quality customers on the premise of ensuring controllable risks.
The Group will continue to conduct in-depth research and
followup on specific industries, and with the cooperation of
various business segments, capture special investment
opportunities in high-quality enterprises or markets. By
expanding the search scope of investment projects, the Group
will further expand the scale of equity and M&A projects to lay
the foundation for future earnings. The Group will also
continue to provide capital support to leading enterprises with
a fast-growing market scale, mature business model, high

investment value and endorsement by well-known investors.

Equity fund business, the Group will make full use of the
advantages of the QFLP license to introduce overseas funds to
promote foreign investment in industries encouraged by the
state and promote industrial upgrading, while meeting
diversified investment and financing needs of both domestic
and overseas customers. By mobilizing resources in domestic
and overseas markets, it will achieve efficient internal and
external linkages and coordinated development. At the same
time, by taking advantage of the uniqueness of the QFLP
license, the domestic subsidiaries of the Group can cooperate
with overseas subsidiaries to participate in domestic equity
projects and assist overseas subsidiaries in due diligence and
other works before investment. In addition, the Group will
further promote the collaboration with Shandong Hi-Speed
Group, dig into other high-quality resources within Shandong
Hi-Speed Group and identify high-quality equity investment
opportunities, and share resources with other investment
platforms of Shandong Hi-Speed Group to jointly analyze

investment projects.
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d)

e)

Asset management business, the Group will strengthen its
cooperation with market peers to jointly explore customer
resources. On the other hand, the domestic subsidiaries of the
Group will continue to expand their asset management
business, give full play to their location advantages, brand
advantages, QFLP license advantages, equity investment policy
benefit advantages of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
and regional advantages of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area, and actively carry out cross-border business
and domestic asset management business. In addition, the
Group will strengthen communication with potential investors
to understand their different capital attributes and risk-return
preferences, and proactively seek suitable high-quality projects
and third-party funds in the market.

Securities brokerage business, while expanding its business
of stock and bond underwriting, securities transaction and
margin transaction, the Group plans to launch its new IPO
margin financing business in line with market needs so as to
attract more new customers and increase interest margin
income. At the same time, the Group will continue to optimise
algorithmic trading with its counterparties and improve the
infrastructure construction of securities companies. In addition,
we will fully leverage on the high-quality resources and
networks of the Group to serve Hi-Speed Group and other
enterprises in the province with overseas investment needs, so
as to become a critical gateway of overseas investments of
enterprises in Shandong Province. We will expand new
institutional clients appropriately on the basis of our existing
customers, so as to drive the growth of securities trading
business by the investment business of Financial Group and the
margin business of Securities Company.
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f)  Financial leasing business, the Group will further strengthen
its financing leasing business and prudently develop factoring
business. In addition, the Group will learn advanced technology
by leveraging on the resources advantages of Shandong Hi-
Speed Group, the Group, and excellent peers, to achieve
resource sharing and consolidate, grow and optimize our
leasing business. At the same time, the Group will give full play
to the talents and potential of its team, seize the relief
opportunities of economic and industrial restructuring, energy
conversion, and investment and financing optimization
opportunities of enterprises and projects in an environment of
economic periodic fluctuations, as well as appropriately
participate in special investment opportunities such as relief
and restructuring of listed companies and revitalization of real

estate projects.

In accordance with the strategic development planning of the Group,
the Group has carried out reform of its business divisions during the
Reporting Period and newly established three business divisions: fixed
income, standard equity and industrial investment. The Group will
continue to optimize the construction of three business divisions and
leverage on the risk and return appetite of the Group, genetic culture
and current investment capabilities, with the aim of identifying and
holding quality assets and obtain growth value from quality industrial
assets by fully utilizing diversified stock and debt investment
instruments. The Group will continue to increase the proportion of
industrial investments steadily, so as to form an asset allocation
pattern in which the fixed income business will contribute stable
profits for the current period and the industrial investment business
will continue to increase the net assets of the Company and bring
continuous stable cash flow and excess profit distribution, so as to

become bigger and stronger.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In order to prevent the potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group proactively strengthened the management of external
financing and banking facilities, effectively reduced capital costs and
continuously improved debt structure. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had sufficient liquidity and working capital to maintain
normal business operations. As at 31 December 2021, the total
amount of cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
approximately HK$1,334,300,000 (2020: HK$5,045,748,000), total
assets were approximately HK$22,950,451,000 (2020:
HK$24,966,194,000) and total borrowings were approximately
HK$13,947,223,000 (2020: HK$14,829,314,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a total of
24,089,384,437 issued shares with a par value of HK$0.00025 each,
and the total equity attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately HK$1,408,651,000 (2020: HK$2,393,777,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding borrowings of the Group
were comprised of bank borrowings, bonds and other borrowings
which were approximately HK$4,375,155,000 (2020:
HK$2,931,344,000), HK$7,898,646,000 (2020: HK$11,348,620,000)
and HK$1,673,422,000 (2020: HK$549,350,000), respectively. As at
31 December 2021, the outstanding bonds of the Group included,
two secured bonds with a coupon rate of 3.95% per annum (the
outstanding amount: approximately HK$5,531,469,000), a secured
bond with a coupon rate of 4.30% per annum (the outstanding
amount: approximately HK$794,070,000), a secured bond with a
coupon rate of 3.20% per annum (the outstanding amount:
approximately HK$702,131,000), a secured bond with a coupon rate
of 2.80% per annum (the outstanding amount : approximately
HK$470,613,000), a secured bond with a coupon rate of 1.30% per
annum (the outstanding amount: approximately HK$390,309,000)
and an unsecured bond with a coupon rate of 1% per annum (the
outstanding amount: approximately HK$10,054,000). The above-
stated bonds and other borrowings were denominated in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. Details of the bank borrowings and other
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (total outstanding
borrowings divided by total assets) of the Group was approximately
60.77% (2020: 59.40%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk with respect to
Renminbi which may affect the Group’s performance. The Group will
pay attention to the possible exchange rate exposure due to the
continuing fluctuation of Renminbi, closely monitor its impact on the
performance of the Group and consider adopting appropriate
hedging measures when necessary. In addition, the Group also pays
attention to the impact of the U.S. interest rate fluctuations on its
U.S. dollar-denominated assets from time to time, and takes
appropriate response measures. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s management considers the foreign exchange exposure was
insignificant and therefore the Group has neither held any financial
instruments for hedging purposes, nor any currency borrowings or

other hedging instruments to hedge.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's finance lease receivables with
a carrying amount of approximately HK$155,325,000 (2020:
HK$67,940,000) , financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$1,240,019,000 (2020: HK$ nil), and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$2,616,884,000 (2020: HK$381,337,000) have

been pledged to secure borrowings of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities and

capital commitment during the Reporting Period.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any individual
investment with a fair value of 5% or more of the total assets of the
Group. Save as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other significant
investments during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any specific
plans for significant investment or capital assets acquisition during
the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted the following
material acquisition and disposal:

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Coastal Silk Limited

To further strengthen the cash flow and the liquidity condition of the
Group and to allow the Group to reallocate its resources for future
development, on 7 April 2021, the Group disposed of all the shares
of Coastal Silk Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and recorded a gain on disposal of the subsidiary of
approximately HK$171,135,000. Upon completion of the disposal,
the Group no longer holds any business of technology finance. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7
April 2021.
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Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Ascend Delight Limited

On 5 December 2021, China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital (HK)
Limited (“China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital (HK)"”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (the “Ascend Delight SPA") with Kaisa Group
Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Group”), Grand Sail Developments Limited (2%
MEERE AR A R]) (“Grand Sail”) and Kaisa Ventures Limited (f£JK %
BB BR A F]) (“Kaisa Ventures”), pursuant to which, subject to the
fulfillment or waiver of the conditions precedent as stipulated
therein, China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital (HK) agreed to purchase
and Kaisa Ventures agreed to sell the 100% equity interest in Ascend
Delight Limited (i3 BBR A 7)) (“Ascend Delight”) and all loans and
other amounts (whether principal, interest or otherwise) due from
Ascend Delight and or any of its direct and indirect subsidiaries to
Kaisa Group or any of its affiliates at the consideration of at most
HK$186,389,227, subject to the possible downward adjustment
pursuant to the terms under the Ascend Delight SPA. Completion of
the transaction took place on 7 December 2021 with the
consideration of approximately HK$186,388,000, which was settled
through setting off the equivalent amount against part of the
outstanding amount due from Grand Sail to the Group under the
CSFG Facility Agreement™* " Immediately after the completion, the
Group holds 100% equity interest in Ascend Delight which becomes
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Ascend Delight indirectly
wholly-owns The Center (38) Limited, which is the sole legal and
beneficial owner of 38th floor of THE CENTER (FRIBAR ) ™02 For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5
December 2021.

Note 1:means the facility agreement dated 18 December 2019 entered into by the China
Shandong Hi-Speed Capital (HK), Grand Sail and Kaisa Group, pursuant to which,
among others, China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital (HK) agreed to provide a loan
facility of USD125,000,000 to Grand Sail for an extendable term of 364 days
after its utilization (which was extended by the parties thereto for another 364
days to 16 December 2021), with Kaisa Group acting as guarantor. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 18 December 2019 for details.

Note 2:all those 1,846 equal undivided 172,379th parts or shares of and in all that piece
and parcel of ground registered in the land registry as inland lot no. 8827 and of
and in the messuages, erections and buildings construed thereon now known as
“THE CENTER (FR3R ) “ no. 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong together
with the sole and exclusive right and privilege to hold, use, occupy and enjoy all
that 38th floor of THE CENTER together with all existing fixtures and built-in
fittings and furniture therein.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of the Group
during the Reporting Period.

FURTHER INFORMATION OF THE LENDING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, the lending business involved by the
Group include structured financing business, financial leasing
business and securities margin business.

Structured financing business and financial leasing
business

The structured financing business of the Group focus on commercial
loans with loans of “short term, collateralized and low risk”, which
mainly provide financial assistances to listed companies with high
ratings from well-known overseas rating agencies, good credit
qualifications, larger scale of assets and income as well as top
industry rankings.

The finance leasing business of the Group mainly provides financial
assistance to lessees in the form of direct leases or leasebacks in
Mainland China. The Group, as the lessor, enters into finance lease
arrangements in respect of leased goods, such as machineries and
equipment.

During the Reporting Period, the interest income of loans generated
from the structured financing business of the Group was
approximately HK$286,096,000, representing an increase of 1.50%
as compared with approximately HK$281,860,000 for the Previous
Period. The interest income of loans generated from the financial
leasing business of the Group was approximately HK$55,914,000,
representing a decrease of 38.62% as compared with approximately
HK$91,094,000 for the Previous Period.

REILERSRSR

B E SRR E S - AR BRI
EEOEARBRMENBEAT  BEA
ARBELE -

FBEEXBNE-—FTEHN

BEHA  AEBSENEEXKBREE
BEREXRS BREHEXBNESATR
E

EREBMEXRBTNREEERR

AEENERBLELREXRBUBRERS
T WERFRIMEH - AR m KRR ]
MER  TEMESRINDLTREREBR
= EREERY - BEMBARRE
WA TEBERFERN LT ARREME
BB

AEENREEEXHE T ERTE AN
B EAESAE&AEARETEED -
AEB(EREBEA) BRI LREZTHEE
V@I LR ERE R -

WMERKN AEBsEBLEREEBEE
B A B U A 4286,096,000/8 7T © B &
FE R HI%)281,860,0005 7T HN1.50% °
AEBCREMEXBRELEERFEK
A #)55,914,000/8 0 * B E=FRH B4
91,094,000 7L/ 4 38.62% °

SBBERAT 2021 FiR 33



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED N (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has granted two new loans
with the total amount of approximately HK$732,744,000 and
extended the final repayment date of a loan with outstanding total
principal amount of approximately HK$788,762,000. The Group has
granted one financial leasing loan with the total amount of
approximately HK$155,325,000.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Directors performed
impairment assessment on loans receivables and finance lease
receivables with reference to the valuation prepared by an
independent professional valuer. According to the valuation,
accumulated provisions of approximately HK$397,770,000 and
HK$1,554,237,000 have been made in respect of the expected credit
loss of loans receivables and finance lease receivables during the
Reporting Period. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
significant change in the provision of credit losses of loans receivables
was mainly due to the loans receivables of approximately
HK$476,521,000 was transferred from 12m ECL to credit-impaired
lifetime ECL and the loan receivables of approximately
HK$780,145,000 was transferred from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired, resulting in an increase in loss provision of
approximately HK$285,172,000 and HK$93,548,000.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded impairment losses
(net of reversals) of finance lease receivables and loan receivables of
approximately HK$3,009,000 and HK$356,875,000, respectively (the
“Impairment”).
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B #8%E49155,325,000 T °

RBERR  EZLEBLEEGEMR
7 HEHASEE 2 EWE KK E R
EHEFCETRAEANMG - BEBEMGHE - R
REHERERKEFRRERBERER
2 FEHEEBE D BI1EH4397,770,000
7701 1,554,237,000/8 L2 BB -
HE2021F12A3MBILEE  EKRE
HREEBBRBEBCEAEHFTEZARY
476,521,000 L2 W E KA+ =@ A
BEHEEFEEREEERE 2 HER
ZE BB 780,145,000 T2 ERE
FATZEAEREEFEERETES
BEREz2HEHEERE  BREBER
B #8 1147285,172,0007% 7T 593,548,000
BIT °

WMEBHA AEEHSREREKMERER
EREFREBEBE(IRER) 234
3,009,000 7T N 356,875,000 7T ([ )&
EJ) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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As disclosed in “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS —
MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL” in this annual report, the
Group disposed the entire issued shares of Coastal Silk Limited on 7
April 2021 (the “Disposal”). Before the completion of the Disposal,
Shenzhen Honesta New Finance Holding Co., Ltd.* (FIIE4£F < Rl
AR B A a]) (“Honesta New Finance”) was a subsidiary of the
Group, thus the provision of certain loans (collectively, the “Honesta
Loans”) to Honesta New Finance were regarded as intercompany
transactions within the Group. After the completion of the Disposal,
the Honesta Loans became the loans receivable by the Group from
Honesta New Finance. As at the date of this report, the outstanding
loans due from Honesta New Finance were approximately
RMB389,184,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$476,521,000).
During the Reporting Period, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of approximately HK$285,172,000 (2020: N/A) on the Honesta
Loans, which was assessed by an independent valuer.

For details of the methodology and basis used in determining the
amount of the Impairment and the valuation used in assessing the
Impairment during the Reporting Period, please refer to notes 3, 4,
24 and 25, and the section headed “Credit risk” in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board considers that the
provision for the Impairment is appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B8

JE & am 2 0 4 ()

Principal Terms of Granting Loans BFEAEEKS

The principal terms of outstanding loans receivables as at 31 M 2021F 12831 B 2 M A B EEIWE XK

December 2021 were as follows: ZEBERWT ¢

Loans Loans
receivables Allowance  Allowance receivables
(hefore forECL forECL (Ater
accumulated  Accumulated reversed/ reversed Accumulated  accumulated
allowance allowance Transfer ~ (recognised) upon allowance allowance
for ECL) forECl  fortheyear  fortheyear  disposalof  Written off for ECL forECl) Interest  Collateral
asat asat ended ended  subsidiaries  for the year asat asat  rate and/or
31 December 1January 31 December 31 December for the ended31  Exchange  31December 31 December per  guarantee  Maturity
01 01 nm byl year December 2021 realignment nm N1 annum obtained  date
ilAE3 BEuNE HRNE
1283188 Mg 128318 ERE RONE 1283184
BhEE  1R1EH o niNg g qEH
(GtREH BEEE  ERunE BE/(BA) BEN  BZANE WEEGE  (iRER EhR
EEEEN FEZT  NANE  HEMEE  EEEE  upnE BRET  FEEEN /3
ZithEn) BF  LFEER FERE  FERE  LEEME  EXNE ZiRGR) EAE BR 989
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
’r)ﬁn TER TER T#n T#n TEn TEn Thn T#n

Stage 1 £-E8

Customer A ZEA 841,524 (190 - 1902 - - - - 841524 14.00% YesH 210200

Customer B XFB 626,859 (395) - (2,089 - - - (2.484) 624,376 10.00% YesE 1660022

Customer C ZEC 430,186 - - (308) - - - (308) 29877 9.00% Yes B 28062003

Customer D ZED 4045% (245) - (1,300) - - - (1,545) 40301 9.00% Yesg 31/1/2022

Customer E XFE 306,368 - - (473 - - 2 (475) 306393 9.00% Yes& 313003

CustomerF ZFF - (1,097) - 1097 - - - -

Customer G ZEG ) - - 9 - -

2,609,993 (3648 - (1171 9 - [] 4812) 2,605,181

Stage 2 £RA

Customer Hilote 1)~ ZEH(H3E1) 780,145 - - (93,548) - - (70 (93618) 686528 6.00% Ve 15/120001

Customer | ZEI 83,698 (4209) - (2.887) - - - (7.0%) 81602 1300% YesE 30602021

Customer ) (Note2) -~ ZEN([532) - (2877 - - 63403 - (526) - -

Customerk (Note )~ ZEK(J7552) - (3019) - - 30451 - (253 - -

Customer LNote )~ ZPLIKD) - (23140) - - B3 - (19) - -

Customer M{Note2) - ZEM(FE22) - (16,158) - - 16,29 - (136) - -

Customer N ZEN - (15,148) - 15,632 - - (484) - -

Customer 0 zE0 - (3740) 3740 - - -

868,843 (155470 3740 (80,803) 133480 - (1,661) (100,714) 768,130

Stage 3

Customer P (Note 2) 476,521 - - (285,172) - - (740) (285912) 190608 7.50% Yes& 212000

Customer Q (Note 3) 116449 (540) - - - - - (540) 115909 1200% Yes& 313002

Customer O 14874 - (3,740) m - - - (2,969) 11905 19.00% Yes B 3011201

Customer | %5\ 283 (2833) - - - - - 2813 - 2000% YesBE 30902017

Customer R ZER - (45,000) - - - 45,000 - -

Customer § ZES = (6,500 - 6,500 - - - . -

Customer T ZFT - (3000) - 3000 - - - - -

610,667 (57803) (3,740) (274.901) - 45,000 (740) (292.244) 31840
4,089,503 (216,981) - (356,875) 133489 45,000 (2403) (Bo770) 3691733

Notes: Hat -

1. Due to the liquidity issue faced by the guarantor group of Customer H, it cannot 1. BEPFHZERASEOBRNRBESHE &
be assured that the guarantor group will be able to perform its financial FIRBERAEEBENE MBI E LR
obligations under other overseas financing arrangements when they fall due, HEBTEE NTOMEET  BREYNSEE -
which constitutes an event of default. The Group is taking relevant measures to ANEBFHRBABEE  RMEPHEHEERZRA
recover the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes from Customer H and WEEEEBENREERASEAE - FEFR
its guarantor. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company ARABIBEIA2021F12 813 ZAE
dated 13 December 2021.

2. After the Group's disposal of the entire issued shares in Coastal Silk Limited on 7 2. TEAREEFEMR2021F4 A7 8 H E Coastal Silk
April 2021, the Group is no longer interested in the loans provided by certain L|m|tedE’J%ﬁBE§§ﬁH nik  N&E IT\ﬁEA
subsidiaries of Coastal Silk Limited. Coastal Silk L|m|ted HWETHBATTIEHY

BRPHEAER
3. On 23 February 2022, Customer Q fully paid all amounts past due. 3. R2022%2H238 ' REQE/BEMARK °
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As at 31 December 2021, the major terms of outstanding finance

lease receivables were as follows:

Finance lease Allowance
receivables for ECL
(before  Accumulated reversed/
accumulated  allowance Transfer ~ (recognised)
allowance for forECL ~ for the year forthe
ECL)asat asat ended year ended
31December ~ 1January  31December 31December  Exchange
2021 2021 021 2001 realignment
R2021%
128318 H21E
BEER R2021E 128318
EhZE  1B1AN 34

(iIREY  ESEE BZANE BE/(BR)
EEBEYN  BBEZF  0ANE  HEEES

i BF LEEER  FERE  EXSR
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS(000

pr )
=y
s
o
)
E

R2021F12A31HZ M AEERKFE
FHEZESIERWMT -

Accumulated
allowance
for ECL

asat

31 December
year

m0nE
128318
BlEE
ijta

HKS'000

s
E

Finance lease
receivables
(After
accumulated
allowance

for ECL) Collateral

asat Interest and/or

31 December rate  guarantee

2001 perannum  obtained  Maturity date

R2021E

1283188

REEH

ElEE nEn
(ﬂiiﬁ%‘i izl

FEBEN R/3
Ziflk®) FHE L
HKS'000

TEL TR TEn T TER TER  TER

Stage 1 £-K8

Customer A REA 345,694 - (23,180) 8,762 (38) (14456) 31238 4750% Yesh 15120002

Customer B 2Py 155,325 - - (78) - (78) 15,247 6.160% Yesg 1112024

Customer C EEC 86,726 (19 - 10 )] (10) 86,716 8.000% YesB o 15/1201

Customer D EFD 30610 (475) - 210 (16) (281) 30329 7.125% Y 3B0003

Customer E : 23,264 (434) - 24 (14) (204) 33,040 7125% YesB 28082022

Customer F EPF 0407 (504) - 318 (17) 203) 21,24 7125% Yesh 22702

Customer G ZPG 14,285 U] - 5 - o) 14283 7125% Vs 1472022

Customer H REH 13118 ] - 1 1 6) 13,112 7.125% YesH - 28/102022

Customer | 2Pl 12,244 21 - 17 (1) () 12,139 7125% Yesg 432022

Customer ) ZF) nim ®) - 38 B ® 11,109 7125% Yesh /12022

Customer K REK 6,743 (23) - 2 - ) 6,741 8.075% Yesh 1332022

Customer L ZFL - (794) - 819 (29 - -

Customer M EEM - () - 79 @ - -

Customer N ERN - (62 - 64 2 - -

Customer 0 350 - (28 - Iy ) - -

Customer P zpp - (10) - 10 - - -

Customer Q (Note 1) ZEQE1) - (17) 18 - ) - -

720553 (252 (23162) 10,529 (120) (15.275) 705278

Stage2 EoKR

Customer R (Note 2) EPR(ME2) 35,936 (12 - (3,090) 9 Bm 31,805 9.200% YB3/

Customer Q (Note 1) ZFQ(HE) 40406 - (1§ (1044 @ (043 BB 9N0% YesB 2312022

Customer A EFA - (22403) 13,180 - (717 - -

76,342 (22475) 13162 (13538) (793 (13,604) 62,738

Stage 3 LR

Customer § EFR 565,731 (492,130) : S (17,08) (509,158) 5,573 4750% YesB 21303

Customer T EPS 238341 (207,333) . B (7174) (214,507) B84 4750% Yesg 2830021

Customer U ZPT 203239 (176,798) . 5 (6,117) (182,915) 2034 4750% YesB 283021

Customer V 2P 355,079 (343,203) . - (11,876) (355,079) = 9.000% Yesg 171202018

Customer W ZRY 203792 (196,976) 5 . (6,816) (203,792) = 4750% Yes 2617001

Customer X REW 5,234 (5433) i - (1,881) (56,234) s 8.000% YesH 23112018

Customer Y REX 3673 (3,550) i 5 (13) (3673) = 12.000% YesH 23102017

1626089 (1474343 i . (51005 (1525358) 100,731
2422984 (1,499,340) g (3,009) (51,888)  (1,554,237) 868,747

Notes: Kzt -

1 Client Q was adjudicated for bankruptcy and restructuring in August 2021. The 1. BEQR2021 FSAWHTRESE - AEME
Group is currently actively promoting and participating in the negotiation of 5] g‘{ﬂi@}g@ LERIR D BRI B K o
partial investment in its restructuring.

2. Client R was adjudicated for bankruptcy and restructuring in August 2021. The 2 ZERN2021 E8 A THREETE - NEE
Group is currently actively promoting and participating in the negotiation of BRTEREGHEE) - L EIH BEIGE R o
partial investment in its restructuring.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Scale and diversity of customers and loans concentration of
major customers

The customers of the structured financing business and financial
leasing business of the Group are mostly listed companies and large
and medium-sized state-owned enterprises, and their industries cover
real estate, infrastructure, aviation, tourism, semiconductors, new
energy and manufacturing industry, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the loans receivables of the largest
borrower and five largest borrowers amounted to approximately
HK$841,524,000 (2020: HK$971,415,000) and HK$3,155,255,000
(2020: HK$2,962,520,000), the percentages on loans receivables of
the Group were approximately 20.58% (2020: 27.34%) and 77.15%
(2020: 83.37%). The finance lease receivables of the largest lessee
and five largest lessees amounted to approximately HK$565,731,000
(2020: HK$546,811,000) and HK$1,708,637,000 (2020:
HK$1,513,803,000), the percentages on total finance lease
receivables of the Group were approximately 23.35% (2020:
19.49%) and 70.52% (2020: 53.95%).

EFHREHMZ T UREEEFEHE
1R
AEESBIEREXBNBERERHTZ
BEPZRETRBAMATEESR B
ETERERME B2 Mz KE -
FER R REXF -

WMEBRAN  HZRAEBERARNAEAR
AEFHEBRERSEI NN ALY
841,524,000 7t (20204F : 971,415,000
7 75 ) & 3,155,255,000 8 7T (2020 4 :
2,962,520,000/ 7T ) « 15 AN & B FE U E X
B D #)420.58% (20204F : 27.34%)
§77.15% (20204 : 83.37%) ° &AM
ARBIREZRAEAEANEKRESERER
TR & 85 R4 A565,731,0007% 7 (2020
% : 546,811,000 % 7T ) K& 1,708,637,000
770 (20204 : 1,513,803,000/87C) © 16
AEEEKBEARERKRBLENG
D E#) A23.35% (20204 © 19.49% ) &
70.52% (20204 : 53.95%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Credit risk assessment policies and other major
internal control measures

The Group has formulated a set of clear internal control policies in
respect of credit risk management, which clearly sets out, among
others, basic requirements for credit risk assessment and the
requirements of ensuring commercial reasonableness, regulatory
compliance (including but not limited to compliance with corporate
governance and disclosure requirements), adequacy of risk
management measures, rationality of pricing and carrying out
comprehensive due diligence on lending business, as well as establish
a comprehensive review mechanism.

Credit Risk Assessment Policies
The credit risk assessment policies of the Group mainly include the
following aspects:

(@) Enterprise and business due diligences: Relevant scopes
include company background information, shareholding
structure, historical development, business scope and
advantages, major products, business models, major customers
and suppliers, corporate governance, key senior management
personnel, industry analysis and market competition, etc;

(b)  Financial due diligences: Relevant scopes include financial
analysis and financial report analysis, profitability analysis, asset
analysis, debt analysis, cash usage analysis, financial ratio
analysis, repayment ability analysis as well as guarantee and
collateral (if any) analysis; and

(c)  External enquiries: Relevant scopes include litigation records,
credit reports and external ratings.

FERRFAERERAMEERIBER
#ie

AEFBEREERRERTEMNET —F&
FRER) AR B R - B BREE S (K
TR EE R G ERZ SRR
FEEAENE EEARME(BRETR
RETEEERRBEENR)  ERER
maet TEAEBUNMHEEERRKE
TEEERFAENER  YRYE2EEE
Bl o

1= B /7 B2 18 B
AEENEERRAGHRRIZEBRREAT
S

() CHREBEMAS : EEREE
ERARAERERN BRREER F
$HE - EBREREY  TEE
S EBHER TBRPRMUME
BoRREER TESREBA

B ATEAITRMSHFS
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(b) HBEBEBAEAE: HHEBELERK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Credit Approval Processes

Since the implementation of the Group’s policies in August 2020,
according to the current internal control policies of the Group, all
non-standardized investments (including but not limited to all money
lending projects) made by any subsidiary of the Company which were
funded by the own financial resources of the Group shall be
approved at the Group’s level. The existing approval processes for
loan and finance lease projects of the Group are outlined below:

Step 1: Project approval

The steps of project approval require an assessment of (i) whether
the proposed project complies with the strategic planning and project
requirements of the Group; and (ii) whether there are any preliminary
issues with respect to the transaction structure.

Before carrying out any proposed money-lending project, the
Investment and Strategic Development Department headed by the
Chief Investment Officer (the “Relevant Investment and Strategic
Development Department”) must be provided with the basic
information on a proposed project, including but not limited to (i) the
reasons of financing by the borrower; (ii) principal terms of the loan
(such as interest rate and estimated principal amounts of the loan);
(iii) collateral and guarantees to be provided by the borrower; (iv)
risks associated with the loan; and (v) exit mechanism under the
contractual structure for approval.

Step 2: Due diligences

After obtaining the project approval, a comprehensive due diligence
will be carried out and a due diligence report will be prepared
accordingly. The scope of due diligence generally includes, among
other things, (i) the credit risk assessment of the borrower mentioned
above; (i) securities and collateral analysis; (iii) guarantee analysis; (iv)

major risk analysis; and (v) formulate risk management measures.

EEHFHRE

B2020F8 A EMEEERKE - REBEAE
BEREOANIIZESBER - ARREMTFR
RETHEAREEA BB ERBE
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WERZEMEEB EZA - ARAER
REBERENRE HREBERA([HEER
BHERRERTLDIEHABEZZRENE
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MR (DERE ZER (A R & IEE
ERARER)  (iERAR TR ER
m M ER  (VERNBERERR : kW&
MRBTHROES - AEL -

RES LA EREETEm N FB S
L UHEREERALTRS - ERHAT
MEE—REE(EFEE) () EXMER
MERANEERBRTMG  (HEHEE
W@ (iR (VEERBRD
o R(v) Bl E R E RIS o

40 China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Step 3: Pre-approval of projects

After conducting the due diligence mentioned in step 2 above and
anti-money laundering assessment, determining the principal terms
and completing the reviews for conflicts of interest, the due diligence
report will be submitted to the Risk Management Department of the
Company for review. The Risk Management Department of the
Company will lead the Legal and Compliance Department, Finance
and Operation Department as well as Investment and Strategic
Development Department to review the governance compliance,
feasibility, reasonable pricing, risks and adequacy of risk management
measures of a proposed project. After a proposed project has been
pre-approved, a risk assessment report containing the review results
will be issued by the relevant risk department and submitted to the
Investment Decision Committee (see Step 4 below) and the Executive
Committee of the Company for approval.

Step 4: Approved by the Investment Decision Committee

Upon receipt of (i) the due diligence report prepared in accordance
with Step 2; (ii) the risk assessment report prepared in accordance
with Step 3; and (iii) the calculation results of size tests in accordance
with the Listing Rules, the Investment Decision Committee will hold a
meeting to review the governance compliance, feasibility, risk and
risk management measures of a proposed project, which will focus
on, among other things, government policies, political trends, the
development strategies of the Group as well as the transaction
structure and logic.

Each member of the Investment Decision Committee can provide
independent opinions and recommendations on a proposed project,
and their respective opinions and recommendations shall be
approved by at least two-thirds of the members of the Investment
Decision Committee and the chairman of the Investment Decision
Committee to form the formal comments and recommendations of
the Investment Decision Committee.
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Step 5: Approved by the Executive Committee of the Company

After the Investment Decision Committee has approved a proposed
project (as described in Step 4), the Executive Committee of the
Company will review the proposed project, focusing on the key terms
and conditions as well as the key issues of such transactions. If the
proposed transaction constitutes a discloseable transaction or
connected transaction under Chapter 14 or Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, such project will also be subject to the approval of the
Board.

Before convening a board meeting to review and approve a proposed
project, the Relevant Investment and Strategic Development
Department of the Group and relevant business teams will explain to
each board member and discuss with them the main information of
the proposed project, including but not limited to (i) the key financial
information related to the proposed project; (ii) the key transaction
terms; (i) the background information of counterparties; (iv) factors
affecting pricing; (v) key due diligence; and (vi) the calculation results
of size tests, and provide supplementary information. Adjustments
will be made based on the views, opinions and suggestions of board
members. If the proposed project is approved by a majority of the
board members present at the meeting, information will be disclosed
in accordance with the requirements under Chapter 14 and Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Monitor the recoverability of loans/financial leases and the
sufficiency of collaterals

The Company has established a post-investment management system
in line with its business models to monitor the recoverability of loans/
financial leases and the sufficiency of collaterals. The project team is
the first party responsible for the post-investment management of
the money lending projects, and it is responsible for the post-
investment works stipulated in the post-investment management
measures under the internal policies of the Group. The Risk
Management Department of the Group is the second party
responsible for the post-investment management of money lending
projects, which is responsible for monitoring and supervising the
post-investment management. Post-investment management usually
includes on-site inspections, public opinion monitoring, financial
analysis, issuing repayment reminders and early warnings, monitoring
the status of collateral (if any) and assessing its value on a regular
basis. Post-investment management reports shall be prepared at least
once every three (3) months, covering at least the operating
conditions of the borrower and guarantor (if any), the latest financial
statement analysis and volatility analysis, debt analysis and other
financial analysis, repayment source tracking and analysis, latest
information of industry policies, market conditions, litigation and
enforcement status, credit ratings, negative reputation information as
well as the status and value of guarantees and collateral (if any), risk
identification and risk level assessment.

Continue to monitor the recovery of loans

In order to monitor the loan repayment and recovery, according to
the relevant internal control policies of the Group in relation to post-
investment management, the Group prepares a ledger containing the
principal amounts and interest repayment progress of each loan, and
shall issue repayment reminders to borrowers before the due date of
repayment of principal amounts and interests of loans. If there is any
indicator showing the borrower is unable to repay on time, an early
warning should be given according to the requirements under the
system.
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Measures for loan recovery

If there is a risk warning or actual default in repayment of loans or
financial leases, the project team should report to the Risk
Management Committee of the Group in a timely manner and take
follow-up actions to recover the amounts, including communicating
repayment requirements, following up due diligences of customers,
determining repayment ability of customers and formulating
repayment plans. Response plans for such delinquencies must also be
formulated by the responsible project team and approved by the Risk
Management Committee of the Group before implementation. If
required by the internal policies of the Company or Listing Rules, the
relevant response plan must also be approved by the Executive
Committee, the Board and the general meeting of the Company.

After the relevant response plan is approved, the relevant project
team will be required to report the implementation progress of the
response plan to the Risk Management Department of the Group,
which will then report to the management on a regular basis. The
Risk Management Committee will also hold regular special meetings
to provide guidance and opinions on relevant response plans.

The Directors consider that the above internal control procedures
significantly reduced the credit risk of the Group.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s credit policy and
monitoring the credit quality of the customer loan portfolio of the
Group. The management reviews the recoverable amounts of finance
lease receivables and loan receivables individually or collectively at
each reporting date, so as to ensure that adequate impairment losses
have been provided for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the credit risk of the Group has been
significantly reduced. Further quantitative data on the exposure of
the Group to credit risk arising from finance lease receivables and
loan receivables are disclosed in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.
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Securities margin business

The model of margin business of CSFG International Securities under
the Group is accepting customers to secure shares or bonds and
provide a certain proportion of financing in accordance with the total
value and quality of assets in their accounts. Customers can make
leveraged investments through this service and seize opportunities to
obtain higher investment returns.

Upon receiving the application of margin loans, the Risk Department
of CSFG International Securities (the “Securities Risk Department”)
will carry out risk assessment of the margin loan applications and
provide suggestions. The margin loan applications will be submitted
to the Credit Business Committee of the Group for ultimate approval,
such committee comprises two staff of CSFG International Securities
who are licensed to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) as well as members from the Legal and
Compliance Department, Finance and Operation Department,
Investment and Strategic Development Department and Risk
Management Department of the Group.

Except for the principal factors considered mentioned in the above-
mentioned credit risk assessment policies, the Group also considers (i)
the assets in securities accounts of clients; and (i) the settlement and
margin call records when assessing its credit risks.

The person-in-charge of Securities Risk Department will monitor the
margin loan position daily and will follow up when there are defaults
in repayment and margin calls. In the event of any default in
repayment of margin loans or the loan-to-value percentage of
borrowers reaches a pre-determined ratio, the responsible project
team will implement margin call and forced liquidation procedures.

For the margin loans receivables of our margin business, the amount
of margin loans receivables from the top borrower and top five
borrowers was approximately HK$112,928,000 (2020:
HK$242,678,000) and HK$223,165,000 (2020: HK$398,737,000)
during the Reporting Period, accounting for approximately 49.44%
(2020: 60.17%) and 97.71% (2020: 98.87%) of margin loans
receivables of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the margin loans receivables of the
Group accounted for 0.98% (2020: 1.36%) of the total assets of the
Company, which had an insignificant financial contribution to the
Group, thus the Directors are of the opinion that it is of no value to
disclose details of the principal terms of margin loans granted by the
Group. As at 31 December 2021, in the opinion of the Directors, the
fair value of collaterals was sufficient to mitigate the credit risk in
margin financing.

REARER

AEEETUSBERESHNFREBER
REXEPEMBRERES  BRIRFPA
BEMBEERER  EH-ELAMNE
& BPAIABBIRBETEREAR
B EERSERESMNKREDR -

WEIRFCERRFE  WLURERZESZD
RE((FErRRES D @HRESERS
FETRBFFAITRMES - RESER
RRARREENEEXEBZREEREN
E(ZEZEEAUSERESNMAES
BEFIMIEEHERZBEREALSE
(BHEHEGRN)(BEEVIESTIE)
RENFIR(BEFRZ)IXEERDINE
T ARREEEZEERAHRS  BHR
EEE  WERREEHREELERE
BIRCBAEMK) °

BEXPEERRIEBRRERZEE
ZRARN ARETERE)EFFPEHER
FPHoEE  MiDFHEEEERBRE WA
BMRE T EBCEE -

BHEARBEEABERERRELER
BOR - 00 i R IR S AR
TR - MTRIRE & BRERIER
R S A A BRI (L B S B
% AEAEE BRGENRES R
T8

RAREBZERFRERME @ HEH
W EABRAR AL EAERNER
HFRERESEH AL A112,928,0008 T
(20204 : 242,678,000/ 7T ) }&2 223,165,000
9T (20204 : 398,737,000/ 70)  {hAK
EERERFEERNE D4 A49.44%
(20204 :60.17% ) }%97.71% (20204 :
98.87%) ©

REHA - AEBEZERKFTFREREAR
T4 EE0.98% (20204 : 1.36%) »
AEENPBEEBTTEX  WEERA
WEAEERFHEERNIEERZH
IS EBE - 20215128318 ' &%
REEFRDZATFEEAREFREME 2
=E R -

FEILESReMERBRAR 2021 F£3f 45



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWED N (&)

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, there were 163 employees (including the
directors of the Group and directors of the Company’s subsidiaries),
while there were 512 employees for the corresponding period of
2020. Such change was mainly due to the fact that after the disposal
of the entire shares of Coastal Silk Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 7 April 2021, the number of
employees of Coastal Silk Limited was no longer included in the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) incurred and included in profit or
loss were approximately HK$196,140,000, an increase of 4.88%
over the Previous Period, mainly due to the Group reformed thee
business departments and adjusted the staffing during the Reporting
Period and further optimized the staff incentive scheme to ensure the
remuneration packages were targeted at core talents and high-level
talents.

The Group actively attracts outstanding talents and builds a strong
team to maintain the overall business growth of the Group. In order
to retain and motivate employees, the Group has formulated an
internal remuneration policy. When selecting and promoting
employees, the Group will make a decision with reference to their
qualification, experience and suitability for the position offered. The
performance of employees will also be used as the basis for reviewing
remuneration package during the annual review. Meanwhile,
competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by
reference to the prevailing market level and individual merits.
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In addition, the Group also provides employees with a series of
welfare policies to enhance their sense of belonging and work
enthusiasm, and jointly promote the sustainable development of the
Group. In order to motivate employees to work hard, the Group
provides bonuses and rewards to outstanding performance
employees. The Group determines the working hours of employees
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and provides
transportation reimbursement and compensatory leave for employees
who work overtime. In addition, the Group provides employees with
social insurance, housing provident fund and mandatory provident
fund and other benefits. In addition to statutory holidays and regular
paid annual leave, employees are also entitled to additional leave
benefits such as sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave and compassionate leave. In addition, eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations will also receive

incentives and compensation under the Share Option Scheme.

Employees are the essential driving force to the sustainable
development of the Group. Adhering to a people-oriented approach
to talent management, the Group continues to invest resources to
attract and retain talents. Employees are provided with competitive
remuneration and benefit packages and equal opportunities, as well
as a wide range of training and development opportunities. The
Group optimises its human resources management system
continuously with a view to providing employees with a friendly and
healthy workplace and ensuring that employees may can develop

their talents and potential.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the
subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the municipal government
contribution scheme whereby the subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC is responsible for
the entire benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the
ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group’s

contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

During the Reporting Period, no contribution was forfeited (by the
Group on behalf of its employees who leave the retirement benefit
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contribution) and used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contribution. As at 31 December
2021, there was no forfeited contribution available for reducing the

level of contribution to retirement benefit schemes in future years.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Formation of Limited Partnership Corporation

On 31 January 2022, Shangao (Shenzhen) Investment Co., Ltd.* (L1
SCEYNIEEARAT] (“Shangao Shenzhen Investment”) (as
limited partner), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a partnership agreement (the “Partnership
Agreement”) with Jinan Shangao Risheng Investment Co., Ltd.* (/&
mlE RS8R EER2AT) (“Shangao Sunrise Investment”) (as
general partner and executive partner) and Jinan Changying Jincheng
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (% & 45 i & 12
PR EABRECE(BERER)) ("Jinan Changying”) (as limited
partner) in relation to the formation of a limited partnership
corporation under the laws of the PRC, named as Jinan Shangao
Lugiao Jincheng Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (&G
ISERLRREABEE(BERAR)) (the “Limited Partnership
Corporation”). Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, Shangao
Sunrise Investment, Shangao Shenzhen Investment and Jinan
Changying committed to contribute RMB1 million, RMB400 million
and RMB400 million, respectively, representing approximately
0.12%, 49.94% and 49.94%, respectively, of the total committed
capital of the Limited Partnership Corporation. Details are set out in
the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" of this annual report.

Subscription of New BECE Shares

On 4 March 2022, Profit Plan Global Investment Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (the “Subscriber”) entered
into a subscription agreement with Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability (“BECE") which shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1250), pursuant to which BECE has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 48,804,039,247 new ordinary
share of BECE (the “Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of
HK$0.096 per share for the total consideration of HK$4,685,187,768
(the “Subscription”).
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As at the date of this report, BECE had 63,525,397,057 shares in
issue. The Subscription Shares represent: (i) approximately 76.83% of
the existing total number of the ordinary share of BECE in issue; and
(i) approximately 43.45% of the total number of the ordinary share
of BECE in issue as enlarged by the allotment and issuance of the
Subscription Shares upon the completion of the Subscription
(assuming that there will be no other change in the total number of
the ordinary share of BECE in issue). Details of the Subscription have
been disclosed by the Company in its announcement dated 14 March
2022. As at the date of this report, the Subscription has not been
completed.
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BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSREEAERTE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company, the chairman of the Board, a member and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company and a
member of the Executive Committee on 7 May 2019. On 17 May
2019, Mr. Wang was designed as the chairman of the Executive
Committee. Mr. Wang is also a director of two subsidiaries of the

Company.

Mr. Wang currently serves as an executive director of Shandong Hi-
Speed Group. He successively held various major positions in
Shandong Hi-Speed Group and has nearly 20 years of working
experience in management and in-depth knowledge in corporate
governance. Mr. Wang holds a master degree in software

engineering from Tianjin University.

Mr. Liu Zhijie, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director and
a member of each of the Executive Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 17 May 2019. Mr. Liu Zhijie is the chief financial
officer of the Company since October 2016 and is a director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Liu Zhijie previously served as the general manager of Planning
and Financial Management Department of China Shandong
International Economic and Technical Cooperation Group Limited
and a director of Shandong International Economics (HK) Limited. He
successively held audit, tax and financial management positions in
accounting firms and large-scale state-owned enterprises. He also
oversaw various overseas companies and has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and financing, as well as overseas
business exposure. Mr. Liu Zhijie obtained a bachelor’'s degree from
Shandong University of Finance and Economics. He is a senior

accountant and selected as high-grade accountant personnel.
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Mr. Liu Yao, aged 36, was appointed as an executive Director, a
member of the Executive Committee and an authorized
representative of the Company on 17 May 2019. He has served as
the vice president of the Company since December 2017 and is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu was
further appointed as a member of the Strategic Development
Committee on 28 July 2021.

Mr. Liu Yao previously worked for a number of arms and divisions of
Shandong Hi-Speed Group, namely the real estate arm, the division
of investment development in listed companies and the investment
development division (property management) of the headquarters of
Shandong Hi-Speed Group. He had participated in professional
trainee exchange programmes held by the investment banking
division of Everbright Securities Company Limited and the fund
management company of Everbright Capital Investment Limited,
respectively. He holds a number of practising qualifications in
accounting, securities and funds respectively, with extensive working
experience in real estate, investment and securities. He obtained a
master’s degree in Finance from Shandong University of Finance and
Economics and is an economist and registered real estate appraiser in
China.
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Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director, the vice chairman of the Board, a member and the chairman
of the strategic development committee of the Board and a member
of the Executive Committee on 28 July 2021.

Mr. Zhu graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
in planning statistics, with a bachelor’s degree in economics, and
holds a master’s and doctorate degrees in finance from Jinan

University.

Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in private equity investment,
secondary market investment and financial management. Mr. Zhu
has been the independent non-executive director of Beijing Energy
International Holding Co., Ltd. (b REEIRBIBIEAR AR A E]) (stock
code: 686) since June 2021, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhu has been a responsible officer of
Sunfine Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited since August 2019,
a corporation holding Type 9 asset management license under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Zhu was the co-founder of both Longfine Capital
Management Co., Ltd. and Sunfine Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited and served as the chief executive officer thereof from
February 2018 to May 2021. Mr. Zhu served various positions in
CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd. from November
2012 to March 2017, including the chief operating officer, member
of the investment decision committee and member of the investment
management committee thereof. Mr. Zhu served various positions in
Changsheng Fund Management Co., Ltd. from April 2007 and
September 2012, including the executive deputy general manager
and the chairman of the investment decision committee thereof. Mr.
Zhu served various positions in Golden Eagle Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. from December 2002 and March 2007, including the chief
inspector and the director of the research and development
department thereof. Mr. Zhu was previously a lecturer of the Faculty
of Investment and Finance of Guangdong University of Finance and
Economics.

RBIREE 475 0 7202197 A28H8
BERTAINTES EEZCRERE 8
BEREZEEXNENTIFEULMNTEES

R BEIOTEAE A B B -
BEEESBLS  THRAEBARS

BER LT MB LB -

KEERLERERE  ZHWHERER
CREESTAEBYSLR - KEEB
2021 F6 AR —E AL RELRBIRIERE
BRAA (B AR5 : 686)(— IR BT
FRETMZRR)ZEBILIERITES - K
SEAEB2019F8HRRARIEEEEETRE (R
BI)ERRAR(BBREBEOEST1EESR
MEAERAIE T EoOERHEEERER
2 EB)zBEANE ° KEE Blongfine
Capital Management Co., Ltd. & B & &
EEB(BB)ARARZERARA - I
H2018F2 AZE2021 G5 A BT ETHA
oo REEMR2012F11AE2017F3A
NP EEXREESEBERAAELS
AR REEAFEEEE  KREARRE
BegXEBRIRAEEZESNKE - KE4L
H2007F4AE2012F9 AR ERESE
BERAREEZ EEA - RIEETHE
BEERIRERKEZEGER - REXER
200212 A E2007F3 AN ECEESE
BERAREELZERY  REERERK
THEEIBEE - RELENEETERILEK
B E SRR ERD -

FEILESReMERBRAR 2021 F£3f 53



BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERGREEAEHE (&)

Mr. Liang Zhanhai, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 14 May 2020.

Mr. Liang has obtained a Bachelor of Industrial Management
Engineering of Wuhan Institute of Technology. He is a senior
accountant and selected as high-grade accountant personnel in

Shandong province.

Mr. Liang has been the head of the planning and financial department
of Shandong Hi-Speed Group since November 2017. Prior to that, he
had been the deputy head of the planning and financial department
of Shandong Hi-Speed Group for almost 7 years. He has concurrently
been the director of Shandong Hi-Speed (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
and Shandong Hi-Speed Company Limited since June 2019 and
March 2020 respectively. He was a director of Shandong Future
Group Co., Ltd. (IUEAKEBER A R]) since October 2021. He
had been a director of Shandong Hi-Speed Basketball Club Group
Co., Ltd* (LE SRERR{ALEEF B R A F]) for more than 4 years. He
had also been the chairman of the supervisory committee of
Shandong Railway Development Fund Co., Ltd.* (IUE#EKEREES
AR AA]) for 3 years. Prior to joining Shandong Hi-Speed Group, Mr.
Liang had been working for various large-scale state-owned
enterprises in various sectors accumulating diversified working

experiences.

Mr. Chen Di, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and member of each of the Audit Committee of the Company and
the Nomination Committee on 14 May 2020. He was further
appointed as a member of the Strategic Development Committee on
28 July 2021.

Mr. Chen obtained his Bachelor and Master degree in Finance from
Jinan University. He also got the master degree in EMBA program at
Tsinghua PBC School of Finance.
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Mr. Chen has over 20 years of extensive experience in the financial
industry, 15 years of which has been with the senior management
team. Mr. Chen is currently the managing director at Harvest Global
Capital Investments Limited and the chief executive officer at Harvest
Global Capital Investments Limited. Mr. Chen joined Harvest in May
2005, he was responsible for the establishment of Guangzhou office
and was appointed as general manager. In 2008, he had taken the
role as south china regional general manager and wealth
management executive director. In 2011, he became the head of
channel development headquarters and wealth management
department. In 2014, he was appointed as chief marketing officer of
Harvest Global Investments and then took the current roles as
managing director of Harvest Fund Management and chief executive
officer of Harvest Global Capital Investments Limited. Prior to Harvest,
he worked at the Guangdong branch of Galaxy Fund* ($R; &%) as
deputy general manager.

Mr. Wang Wenbo, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee on 28 July 2021.
Mr. Wang has a bachelor’s degree in vacuum technology and
equipment from Hefei University of Technology and a master’s
degree of arts in international economic and trade relations jointly
granted by Nankai University and Flinders University of South
Australia. He is a senior economist with in-depth knowledge in

investment and legal fields.

Mr. Wang joined Shandong Hi-Speed Group in January 2001 and
worked in various branches and departments in Shandong Hi-Speed
Group. He assumed management positions in core departments of
Shandong Hi-Speed Group such as the head of key project
monitoring office, deputy chief of the audit and legal affairs and the
director of fixed assets management office. Since 2020, he has
served as the director of investment development department
(property management department) of Shandong Hi-Speed Group,

accumulated extensive experience in corporate management.
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Mr. Guan Huanfei, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 November 2017 and is now the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Guan obtained a
Doctor degree in Economics in 2000 from Wuhan University and was
a postdoctoral researcher in Theoretical Economics with Fudan
University from 2000 to 2002. Mr. Guan has been a part-time
researcher of the Insurance Research Centre of Fudan University since
2004. He has been appointed as a part-time lecturer of professional
degree of Fudan University since 2013. Mr. Guan has been appointed
as a visiting professor of Jilin University of Finance and Economics
since August 2019. Mr. Guan has been an economic and technical
consultant of People’s Government of Jilin Province for years. Mr.
Guan has extensive experience in finance and insurance industry in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. He held various
senior managerial positions in the People’s Insurance Company of
China (Jilin Branch), the business department of Hong Kong and
Macao Regional Office of China Insurance Group, China Taiping
Insurance (HK) Company Limited and China Pacific Insurance Co.,
(H.K.) Limited. He also held offices at the Bank of Communications,
including the deputy chairman of the risk asset management
committee, the deputy chairman of credit asset management
committee, the chairman of loan verification committee, the deputy
general manager of the Bank of Communications Hong Kong
Branch, a director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, the
chairman and chief executive of China BOCOM Insurance Company
Limited and an executive director and general manager of

BoCommLife Insurance Company Limited.
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Mr. Guan is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of China Nonferrous Mining Corporation Limited (stock code: 1258),
Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993),
Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (stock code: 188), and
Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755), all are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. During
the period from December 2017 to June 2018, Mr. Guan served as a
non-executive director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 231). Mr. Guan had been the chairman emeritus of Culturecom
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 343) and the chairman of the board of
directors of UCAN.COM Group Limited, a subsidiary of Culturecom
Holdings Limited from July 2013 to March 2016. Mr. Guan has been
an executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 261) since
May 2015 and had resigned in September 2017. Mr. Guan was an
independent non-executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 886) during the period from March 2008 to January
2011, and he was an executive director and the president of the said
company from January 2011 to December 2012. He was also an
independent non-executive director of China Wood International
Holding Co., Limited (Formerly known as HongDa Financial Holding
Limited) (stock code: 1822), Solis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2227)
and an executive director and chairman of the board of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808), each of which
being a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,

respectively.
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Mr. Chan Wai Hei, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 14 May 2020.

Mr. Chan graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (currently
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in July 1980 with a
Diploma in Accounting. Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a
fellow member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors
of Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of

Directors.

Mr. Chan was the president of The Hong Kong Institute of Accredited
Accounting Technicians Limited (which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) from
1992 to 1995. Mr. Chan has over 35 years of experience in
accounting and finance. He worked for Messrs. Li, Tang, Chen & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practicing) since June 1980 and was
admitted as a partner from April 1989 until September 2018. He is
currently working for Roger K.C. Tou & Co. as a senior consultant.

Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive director of Vanke
Overseas Investment Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1036), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Tan Yuexin (formerly known as Tan Yuexing), aged 58, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee on 17 May 2019.

Mr. Tan served as a project manager, a technical responsible officer,
and a vice general manager of Hunan Changda Construction Group
Co, Ltd. (HMRAZREEBMNBERALF) from 1986 to 2001. He
has served as the chairman of the board of directors of Hunan
Xinyuan Investment Group Co, Ltd. (2 RREEEERER
@]) since 2001. Mr. Tan has 30 years of experience in investment
and management, covering sectors including real estate, healthcare
and elderly care, environmental protection and business operation.

Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 14 May 2020. He
was further appointed as a member of the Strategic Development
Committee on 28 July 2021.

Mr. Yan was graduated from University of Technology, Sydney with a
Master of Management. He previously served as the director of the
MBA (Mandarin International) Education Centre of the University of
Technology, Sydney from 1998 to 2000, the general manager of
Insearch Consulting (Shanghai) Ltd. from 2001 to 2005, and the
general manager of Ecole Fashion Consulting (Beijing) Ltd. from 2006
to 2013. He is the director of Global Finance Development Education
Center of PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University from 2013 to
2020. He has been the president of China Global Philanthropy
Institute (CGPI) since September 2020.
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Mr. Yan has been an independent director of Haisco Pharmaceutical
Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002653.5Z) since January 2017. He has been an
independent director of Guangdong Baolihua New Energy Stock Co.
Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000690.57) and an independent non-executive director of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 336) since May 2019 respectively.
Mr. Yan was an independent director of Beijing Shuzhi Technology
Co., Ltd.* (b mEAEHEID AR AR (@ company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300038.5Z) from September
2018 to April 2020.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sun Qingwei, aged 37, has served as the Chief Operating
Officer and member of the Executive Committee of the Company
since March 2021. Mr. Sun is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Sun joined Shandong Hi-Speed Group in 2011 and has held
various positions including deputy director of Shandong Hi-Speed
Group's office, member of the party committee and deputy general
manager of Shandong Hi-Speed Investment Holding Company
Limited, with extensive experience in corporate culture,
administration and management, finance and investment. Mr. Sun
graduated from Wuhan University with a Master’s degree in
Communication Studies from the School of Journalism and
Communication.
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Mr. Qin Haodong, aged 50, has served as the vice president of the
Company since November 2018, and also vice president of Shandong
Tongda Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* (LF@ESREERR A T),
affiliated to Shandong Hi-Speed Group Co., Ltd. He was previously
general manager of the International Business Division, Trade Finance
Division and Corporate Banking Division of Weihai City Commercial
Bank Co., Ltd., and worked successively in China Construction Bank,
Standard Chartered Bank and JPMorgan Chase Bank. Mr. Qin is
familiar with businesses including international business, trade
finance, investment banking, and transaction banking, from which
he has accumulated extensive experience in financial sector and risk
management. Mr. Qin obtained a Master of Laws degree from the
Law School of Peking University, and is qualified as a practising
lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Qin has been appointed as international
business expert by the International Chamber of Commerce China
Committee (“ICC China”) since May 2010 and a member of
Translation Expert Group of ICC China Banking Commission since
November 2014.

Mr. Lai Jinyu, aged 40, was appointed as the assistant chief
executive officer and chief investment officer of the Company in April
2020. Mr. Lai has held various senior management positions at the
head office of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and China Huarong Asset
Management Company (F Bl#E gt & ZE & 32 /2 7]). He has focused on
direct investment and asset management for a long term and has
accumulated extensive experience in capital utilization and investment
management. Mr. Lai graduated from Peking University Law School
with a Master’s degree in Financial Law and obtained a PhD in

Finance from the City University of Hong Kong.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Du Ning was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 11 November 2021. Ms. Du joined the Group in
September 2019 as the executive director of the board secretary
office of the Company. Before joining the Group, she was the
company secretarial manager in the board office of China RE Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd and the manager of the research
& asset allocation department of China RE Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd, the manager of the general manager office of China
Aviation High-Tech Intelligent Monitoring Company* (B finsBHE §E
BB ATR]) and the administrative director of the human
resources department of Aviation Industry Corporation of China Ltd*

(FEIMZ=TEXEERRAQR).

Ms. Du received her bachelor’s degrees (dual degrees) of business
administration and arts (in English language and literature) from the
Beijing Institute of Technology, her master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Chinese Academy of Science
and her master’s degree of science in finance from the Chinese

University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Chen Chun was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 11 November 2021. Ms. Chen joined the Group in
September 2021 as the senior vice president of board secretary
office. Before joining the Group, Ms. Chen worked in a professional
service firm and acted as the company secretary for various Hong
Kong listed companies and was responsible for providing support
and advisory on listed companies’ company secretarial work and

compliance matters.

Ms. Chen has been an associate member of the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and an associate member of the
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United Kingdom
since March 2016. She obtained a bachelor degree of economics
from Shanghai Lixin University of Accounting and Finance* (&7
=@t REM) (formerly known as Shanghai Finance University) in
July 2010.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in various kinds of financial
services, including standard investment business, non-standard
investment business, industrial investment and the provision of
licensed financial services. Details of the particulars of principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the

consolidated financial statements from pages 133 to 141.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the

Reporting Period (Previous Period: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which any dividends are waived

or agreed to be waived by the shareholders of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend

Policy”), in order to:

(i) establish standard procedures/guidelines that the Board shall
follow when deciding/proposing the amount of dividend per

share;

(i)  reward the Shareholders by sharing part of its profits/gains,
while ensuring that sufficient funds are reserved for the

Company’s future development; and

(i)  maintain a balance between the dividend income of
Shareholders and the long term capital appreciation of all

stakeholders of the Company.
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According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to

declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to be

declared, the Company shall consider a number of factors, including

but not limited to:

(a)

64

the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

funds available from the bank facilities of the Group;

any restrictions on dividend distributions arising from any

agreements;

the liquidity position of the Group;

the overall economic situation, the business cycle of the
Group’s business, and internal or external factors that may
affect the Group’s business operations, financial performance
and positioning;

tax considerations;

the historical level of dividends paid;

relevant laws and regulations; and

any other factors that the Board considers relevant.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration and
payment of dividends by the Company shall comply with applicable
laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules, Bermuda
Companies Act, and the bye-laws of the Company. The
recommendation of the dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board, but any declaration of
annual dividend for the financial year ended of the Company will be
subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the general meeting
of the Company. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time
to time.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Reporting Period is set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in “Measures Against Various Principal Risks”

under the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

Above discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment property of the Group during the Reporting Period are set
out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the Reporting
Period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 18 August
2014, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled

under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period.

PROFIT GUARANTEE

Details of the profit guarantee of the Group are set out in note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUE OF DEBENTURES

On 3 June 2020, Coastal Emerald Limited (“Coastal Emerald”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued 3.80%
guaranteed bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company, due in
2021 in an aggregate principal amount of US$800,000,000 to
professional investors to raise funds for refinancing and general
corporate purposes.

On 16 September 2020, Coastal Emerald issued 3.80% guaranteed
bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company, due in 2021 in an
aggregate principal amount of US$50,000,000 to a professional
investor to raise fund for refinancing and general corporate purposes.

After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received net
consideration of approximately US$798,669,000 and US$50,000,000
from the issuance of the above bonds.

On 24 May 2021, Coastal Emerald issued 3.95% guaranteed bonds,
are guaranteed by the Company with the benefit of a keepwell deed
and a deed of equity interest purchase undertaking provided by
Shandong Hi-Speed Group, due 2024 with a principal amount of
US$200,000,000 to independent third parties to raise funds for
refinancing and general corporate purposes.

On 14 July 2021, Global Castle Investments Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company issued 3.20% secured
guaranteed bonds due in 2022 in an aggregate principal amount of
US$90,000,000 to an independent third party to raise funds for
refinancing and general corporate purposes.

On 22 October 2021, Coastal Emerald issued 2.80% guaranteed
bonds due in 2022 with an aggregate principal amount of
US$60,000,000 to an independent third party to raise funds for
refinancing and general corporate purposes.

On 14 December 2021, Coastal Emerald issued 1.30% secured
guaranteed bonds due in 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$50,000,000 to an independent third party to raise funds for
refinancing and general corporate purposes.
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After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received net
consideration of approximately US$198,620,000, US$89,900,000,
US$59,790,000 and US$48,920,000 from the issuance of the above
bonds.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 46 to the consolidated

financial statements in this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Bermuda Companies Act, the Company’s contributed
surplus of approximately HK$1,524,577,000 may be distributed
under certain circumstances. Other than the contributed surplus, the
Company does not have any reserves available for distribution in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act as at 31 December
2021. In addition, the Company’s share premium account of
approximately HK$4,595,304,000 as at 31 December 2021 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus Shares. Details of the share
premium account and reserves are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As an investment holding enterprise, the Group’s emissions and
resource consumption during business operations mainly come from
office premises. Although there are no material impacts caused by its
business activities on the environment and natural resources, the
Group is committed to introducing green elements into our business
operations and makes every effort to support sustainable
development and minimise the potential impacts of operations on
the environment.

The Group has established a healthy governance Structure for
environmental, social and governance. The Board is responsible for
the overall sustainability strategies and the reporting of
environmental, social and governance, while the relevant
responsibilities of the Board are delegated to the environmental,
social and governance taskforce (the "ESG Taskforce”) for
implementation. The ESG Taskforce will consistently implement the
sustainability strategies of the Board, formulate specific policies,
coordinate various departments to perform relevant duties and report
work progress and provide suggestions to the Board regularly. In
order to further implement sustainability strategies of the Group, the
Group has set up goals in different environmental aspects and will
implement the corresponding supporting measures to achieve

relevant goals.
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The Group concerns about global climate change and incorporates
climate-related issues into the enterprise risk management, while
committing to reducing carbon emissions in business operations by
implementing various measures. The Group encourages our
employees to travel in a low-carbon manner, take public transport
and avoid using private cars without hindering the efficient
operations of the Group. The Group encourages employees to use
video conferencing facilities whenever possible to avoid unnecessary
business trips. When travelling is necessary, employees shall strictly
comply with the Group's specifications of travel allowance claim
under the daily expense standards and choose means of
transportation based on the principles of efficiency and conservation.

The Group actively advocates a sustainable green office policy and
has installed energy-efficient LED lights to replace traditional light
tubes in offices. The Group uses sockets with independent switches
and turns off electrical appliances, such as lights, computers and air
conditioners in offices after normal office hours. The Group has
installed solar film on windows to lower indoor temperature, and
maintained a reasonable temperature level of air-conditioners by
controlling the central air-conditioning system to minimise energy
consumption related to air-conditioners. For office equipment
procurement, models with better energy efficiency are prioritised in
order to further reduce energy consumption in the office. In addition,
energy-saving reminders are posted by the Group in easily visible
places in offices to enhance employees’ awareness of energy
conservation. Meanwhile, instead of printing out documents, the
Group encourages our employees to prioritize to use electronic
equipment to communicate and dissemination of information.
Besides, to minimise the potential impact arising from the use of
paper, all paper procured by us has been certified by the Programme
for the Endorsement of Forest Certification.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws or
regulations by the Group that had a material adverse impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the people-oriented talent management
model is crucial to the long-term development of the Group. The
Group attaches great importance to team building and talent
introduction, and has always adhered to the principles of “openness,
equality, competition and selection” to hire excellent staff. The
Group's employee management focuses on recruiting and developing
talent. Staff performance is measured on a regular and structured
basis to provide employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure
their alignment with the Group's corporate strategy. The Group also
understands that maintaining a good long-term relationship with
business partners is one of its primary objectives. Accordingly, the
Group has used its best endeavours to maintain good
communications, promptly exchange ideas and share business
updates with its business partners when appropriate. During the
Reporting Period, there was no material or significant dispute

between the Group and its business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group's largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 10.50% and 29.61% of the
Group's revenue, respectively. By virtue of the nature of our business,
the Group has no major suppliers. During the Reporting Period, the
Group had insignificant amount of purchases. In the opinion of the
Board, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s
suppliers. At no time during the Reporting Period had the Directors,
their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any interest in these five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang Xiaodong

Non-Executive Director and Vice-Chairman

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao (appointed on 28 July 2021)

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Han (resigned on 11 June 2021)
Mr. Liu Honghui (resigned on 28 July 2021)
Mr. Liu Zhijie

Mr. Liu Yao

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liang Zhanhai

Mr. Chen Di

Mr. Gao Guicheng  (resigned on 28 July 2021)
Mr. Wang Wenbo  (appointed on 28 July 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Huanfei
Mr. Chan Wai Hei
Mr. Tan Yuexin

Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY AND DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee for
reviewing the Group's remuneration policy and structure for
remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group.
The remuneration is recommended or determined based on each
Director’s and senior management personnel’s qualification, position
and seniority. As for the non-executive Directors, their remuneration
is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the

Remuneration Committee.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS"” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Material Related Party
Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting Period.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, in so far as the Directors were aware, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business that competed or was likely to compete with the business of

the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Material Related Party
Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has entered into any
contract of significance with a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling

Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into the
following connected transactions:

1.  Formation of a Joint Venture Company

On 28 June 2021 (after trading hours), Shangao (Shenzhen)
Investment Co., Ltd.* (U5 OFII) ILEBR A7) (“Shangao
Shenzhen Investment”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the a founders agreement with
Shandong Hi-Speed Road & Bridge Investment Management
Co., Ltd* (URBHREBIKREEEBRAF]) ("SDHS Road &
Bridge Investment”) and Beijing Yifang Commercial Factoring
Co., Ltd.* JtR—AREZEREER AR (“Beijing Yifang”) in
relation to the formation of a limited liability company in the
PRC, namely Shangao Commercial Factoring (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*
(LEmEmERE (R) BRAFA) (the “Joint Venture
Company”).
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Pursuant to the Founders Agreement, among others, the
registered capital of the Joint Venture Company would be
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$120,000,000), of which SDHS Road & Bridge Investment,
Shangao Shenzhen Investment and Beijing Yifang agreed to
make a capital contribution in cash to the Joint Venture
Company of RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$54,000,000), RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,000,000) and RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,000,000) respectively, representing 45%,
40% and 15% of the registered capital of the Joint Venture
Company.

As at the date of the Founders Agreement, as (i) Shandong Hi-
Speed indirectly held approximately 43.42% of all issued share
capital in the Company; and (ii) Shandong Hi-Speed Group
indirectly held more than 50% equity interest in SDHS Road &
Bridge Investment, SDHS Road & Bridge Investment was
therefore an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Shandong
Hi-Speed Group and thus a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Founders Agreement

constituted a connected transaction of the Company.

Details of the transaction are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 June 2021, 2 July 2021 and 23 July
2021.
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Acquisition of 2% Equity Interest in
a Target Company

On 2 August 2021, Qingdao Shangao Zhiyuan Private Equity
Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (F&1L5
BENBREREESEREE (BRER)) (the "Purchaser”),
entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) with Shenzhen Genvict Technologies Co., Ltd. (%
Y a R AR AR (the “Vendor”) for the sale and
purchase of 2% of the equity interest in Shandong Expressway
Xinlian Technology Co., Ltd.* (L& S EEMRIRAMDERE A
Al]) (the “Target Company”) for a total consideration of
RMB100,000,000 subject to the terms and conditions as set
out in the Equity Transfer Agreement.

As at the date of the Equity Transfer Agreement, (i) the
Purchaser was a limited partnership which one of the indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company committed to
contribute approximately 99.995% of the investment funds to
be raised by the Purchaser; (i) as Shandong Hi-Speed Group
indirectly held approximately 43.42% of all issued share capital
of the Company, Shandong Hi-Speed Group was a controller
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules; and
(iii) as Shandong Hi-Speed Group was interested in over 10%
of the entire equity interest of the Target Company, Shandong
Hi-Speed Group was a substantial shareholder of the Target
Company. Accordingly, the transaction constituted a connected
transaction under Rule 14A.28(1) of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 2 August 2021 and 10 August 2021.
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Subsequent to the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report, the Group has entered into the following connected
transaction:

Formation of Limited Partnership Corporation

On 31 January 2022 (after trading hours), Shangao (Shenzhen)
Investment Co., Ltd.* (L& OFIYI) ILEBRE A7) (“Shangao
Shenzhen Investment”) (as limited partner), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a partnership
agreement (the “Partnership Agreement”) with Jinan Shangao
Risheng Investment Co., Ltd.* (B IL=E BFELEBRAT)
("Shangao Sunrise Investment”) (as general partner and
executive partner) and Jinan Changying Jincheng Equity
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (FEgt5 &2 120%
BFREEHEE (BRAE)) ("linan Changying”) (as limited
partner) in relation to the formation of a limited partnership
corporation under the laws of the PRC, named as Jinan
Shangao Lugiao Jincheng Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* (BmIl S BB RERESELE (ARE®))
(the “Limited Partnership Corporation”).

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, Shangao Sunrise
Investment, Shangao Shenzhen Investment and Jinan
Changying committed to contribute RMB1,000,000,
RMB400,000,000 and RMB400,000,000, respectively,
representing approximately 0.12%, 49.94% and 49.94%,
respectively, of the total committed capital of the Limited
Partnership Corporation. The term of the Limited Partnership
Corporation shall be eight years, in which the first six years are
investment period and the final two years are exit period. The
term of the Limited Partnership Corporation can be extended

or reduced by unanimous consent of all partners.
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The funds of the Limited Partnership Corporation shall be
mainly used to invest in the sectors of infrastructure
construction and public service facilities construction (the
“Target Sectors”) and make equity or debt investments with
sustained and stable cash flow in projects associated with the
Target Sectors. In particular, the Limited Partnership
Corporation shall mainly invest (directly or indirectly) in highway
and transportation infrastructure construction projects and
conversion of old to new energy projects* (¥TEENEEEIR) in

Shandong Province of the PRC.

The Limited Partnership Corporation aims at generating income
and interest returns through identifying and investing in
projects with continuous and stable cash flow. When selecting
the investment target(s), (i) a higher priority shall be given to
high quality domestic highways ports, bridges, and airports
related projects; and (ii) particular emphasis shall be placed on
the likelihood of the Limited Partnership Corporation to recover

its capital and the relevant exit mechanism.

The total investment project size shall be no more than
RMB801,000,000 (i.e. the total committed capital of the
Limited Partnership Corporation) and the term of each
investment shall be less than eight years (i.e. the term of the
Limited Partnership Corporation). The single investment size is
generally not expected to exceed 75% of the total fund raised.
The Limited Partnership Corporation are also subject to the

following investment restrictions:

(@) itshall not provide guarantees for other entities; and

(b) it shall not raise fund via foreign debt during the term of

the Limited Partnership Corporation.
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As at the date of the Partnership Agreement, as Shandong Hi-
Speed Group indirectly held approximately 43.42% of all issued
share capital of the Company, it was a controlling shareholder
of the Company. On the other hand, Shandong Hi-Speed
Group (i) indirectly held more than 50% equity interest in
Shangao Sunrise Investment; and (ii) indirectly held more than
50% equity interest in Jinan Changying. Therefore, Shangao
Sunrise Investment and Jinan Changying were indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shandong Hi-Speed Group and
thus connected persons to the Company. Accordingly, the
entering into of the Partnership Agreement constituted a

connected transaction of the Company.

Details of the transaction contemplated under the Partnership
Agreement, including but not limited to the principal terms of
the Partnership Agreement, the background and relevant
experience of the management team of Shangao Sunrise
Investment, further details of the investment mandate and
further description of nature of the underlying investments are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 31
January 2022 and 25 February 2022.

Up to the date of this report, the Limited Partnership
Corporation has so far made investment of approximately
RMB292.5 million as capital contribution (as limited partner) in
a limited partnership corporation formed under the laws of the
PRC with the same investment scope, of which Shangao
Sunrise Investment also acted as general partner. The auditing
and profit distribution of such investments shall be conducted
once or twice a year, and that a substantial part of the
investment returns shall be collected within 4 years from the
date of investment for the purpose of minimizing investment
risks.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

On 26 March 2018, the acquisition and subscription of a total of
60% issued shares in Kun Peng International Limited (4HEEIBR AR
‘A\]) ("Kun Peng”) was completed. Before the Group disposed of
its interest in Kun Peng on 7 April 2021, Kun Peng, through Honesta
Consultancy Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (B4 &5

B CFI) AMERAF) (“Honesta Consultancy Management”) (its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary), controlled the operation of
Shenzhen Honesta New Finance Holding Company Ltd.* GZEHIE 4
FremiEiARAR) ("Honesta New Finance”), a company
incorporated in the PRC, its subsidiaries and invested entities by way
of entering into a number of contracts i.e., the exclusive business
cooperation agreement, the exclusive option agreements, the equity
pledge agreements, the director’s power of attorney, the
shareholder’s power of attorney, the spouse consent letter and other
ancillary documents relating to the contractual arrangements
thereunder (collectively the “Structured Contracts”) and the

registered shareholders (the “VIE structure”).

The major terms of the Structured Contracts are set out in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

On 7 April 2021, Perfect Waters Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as vendor entered into a share purchase
agreement with Ms. Fu Yu as purchaser for the sale and purchase of
the entire issued shares of Coastal Silk Limited (the “Disposal of
Coastal Silk”). As Coastal Silk Limited was the direct shareholder of
the aforementioned 60% issued shares in Kun Peng, since the
completion of the Disposal of Coastal Silk which took place on 7
April 2021, the Company ceased to have any direct or indirect equity
interest in or control over Honesta New Finance.
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VIE Structure

Honesta New Finance, its subsidiaries and invested entities
(collectively the "Structured Entities”) principally engaged in,
inter alia, securities investment management, conducting
electronic commerce, provision of financial intermediary service
through the internet, market research, internet culture
operation (collectively the “Restricted Business”), all of which
had been subject to foreign ownership restrictions under the
laws of the PRC. According to the PRC legal advisers, (i) the
businesses of securities investment management shall be
controlled by PRC persons, (ii) the businesses of electronic
commerce, provision of financial intermediary service through
the internet and market research had been subject to foreign
investment restrictions and (iii) the business of internet culture
operation had been subject to foreign investment prohibition.
Immediately before the Disposal of Coastal Silk, Honesta New
Finance had been owned by Mr. Hua Meng* ((£%), Mr. Guo
(3BE), Mr. Cheng Xiaoxin* (#2/)\%7) and Shenzhen
Honesta Letou Number 8 Investment Management Limited
Partnership* (FIIEELEE ) FRIREEELE (BRER))

10 30%, 30%, 19% and 21% respectively.

Yong*

The Company considered that numerous subsidiaries and
associates of Honesta New Finance and the Company could
together generate synergies, which would create favourable
conditions for the Company’s development.
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Reasons for using the VIE Structure

The Directors are of the view that the Structured Contracts had
been narrowly tailored as they had been used to enable the
Group to invest in businesses that operate in industries subject

to foreign investment restrictions in the PRC.

Significance and financial contribution of the
Structured Entities to the Group

The Board considered the Structured Entities as significant to
the Group as they held the relevant licenses to conduct the
Restricted Business.

The Structured Entities recorded revenue and net loss of
approximately HK$18,742,000 and HK$12,866,000 for the
Reporting Period.

As the Company ceased to have any direct or indirect equity
interest in or control over Honesta New Finance since the
Disposal of Coastal Silk, as at 31 December 2021, the assets
and liabilities of Structured Entities did not constitute any of

the Group's assets or liabilities.

Risks and mitigation relating to the VIE
Structure

In connection with the VIE Structure, the Group had been
subject to certain risks and limitations before the Disposal of
Coastal Silk, which are summarized below:

Limitations in exercising the option to acquire ownership in

Honesta New Finance

The exercise of the option under the exclusive option
agreements of the Structured Contracts to acquire the
ownership of Honesta New Finance might have been subject to
substantial costs, including but not limited to enterprise income
tax imposed by the relevant PRC governmental authorities,

stamp duties and professional fee.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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The PRC government might have determined that Structured
Contracts are not in compliance with any of the then existing

or future applicable PRC laws or regulations

Although the PRC legal advisers of the Company are of the
view that the Structured Contracts are not in violation of the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, uncertainties still existed
regarding the interpretation and application of the PRC laws
and regulations.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has not encountered
any interference or encumbrance from any governing bodies in
investing in Honesta New Finance through the Structured
Contracts before the Disposal of Coastal Silk.

Certain provisions in the Structured Contracts which might not
have been enforceable

According to the PRC legal advisers, the provisions regarding
the dispute resolution provisions of the Structured Contracts
which set forth that the arbitration body may issue injunctions
or winding-up orders might have been invalid and
unenforceable under the PRC laws.

Honesta Consultancy Management relied on the Structured
Contracts to control and obtain the economic benefits from
Honesta New Finance, which might not have been as effective

in providing operational control as direct ownership

The Company had to rely on the rights of Honesta Consultancy
Management under the Structured Contracts to effect changes
in the management of Honesta New Finance and make an
impact on its business decision making, as opposed to
exercising its rights directly as a shareholder. If Honesta New
Finance or its registered shareholders refused to cooperate, the
Company would face difficulties in effecting control over the
operation of business of Honesta New Finance through the
Structured Contracts, which might have adversely affected the

Company'’s business efficiency.
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The registered shareholders of Honesta New Finance might

potentially have a conflict of interests with the Group

Conflicts of interest might arise when the interest of the
registered shareholders of Honesta New Finance did not align
with that of the Company, and the registered shareholders of
Honesta New Finance might breach or cause Honesta New
Finance to breach the Structured Contracts. If the Company
failed to resolve this internally, it might have to resort to
dispute resolution. If ultimately the shareholder(s) had to be
removed, it would be difficult for the Company to maintain

investors’ confidence in the Structured Contracts.

The contractual arrangements might have been subject to

scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities

Under the Structured Contracts, Honesta New Finance had
been required to pay Honesta Consultancy Management a
service fee for the services rendered by Honesta Consultancy
Management. Such service fee payments between related
parties might have been subject to scrutiny or challenge by the
PRC tax authorities.

The Company did not have any insurance which covered the
risks relating to the Structured Contracts and the transactions

contemplated thereunder

Where any risks arose from the Structured Contracts, such as
those affecting the enforceability of the Structured Contracts
and the relevant agreements for the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the operation of Honesta New Finance, the

results of the Group might have been adversely affected.
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Mitigation

The Group continuously monitored the relevant legal and
operational environment from time to time to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Group had
implemented relevant internal control measures to reduce the

operational risks.

(v) Material changes

During the Reporting Period and before the Disposal of Coastal
Silk, there was no material change in the Structured Contracts

and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted.

(vi) Unwinding or termination of the Structured
Contracts

Up to the completion of the Disposal of Coastal Silk, none of
the Structured Contracts had been unwound or terminated.
Since the completion of the Disposal of Coastal Silk on 7 April
2021, the Company ceased to have any direct or indirect equity
interest in or control over Honesta New Finance.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the related party
transactions disclosed under the section headed “Material Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements constitute a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined under the Chapter 14 of the Listing

Rules that is required to be disclosed.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director, auditor,
secretary or other officers of the Company and every agent of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, losses and
expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout

the Reporting Period.

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company was interested in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
the he/she was taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any other Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial
shareholders

TERREH

Capacity
Eg0)

AR RAEER

MR2021F12 8318 MEFE - 77
AL (BESHARRESTHRABRIN G
ERBEBEHFRBEKROAEXVEFE2R3ID
HERAABFHENEZIOAE - HIRIE
BEHERAEEPEI6HERAATEEFEZE
AR ER 2 S AR

Number of
shares held

BFENROEE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding™
FRELABE D

Shandong Hi-Speed Group Co., Ltd.*
(LEEREEGRAT)
RS RERBR AR

Shandong Hi-Speed (BVI) Capital
Management Limited®

Shandong Hi-Speed (Hong Kong)
International Capital Limited?

Shandong Rural Economic Development

and Investment Company Limited*
(LREEMNEEREIRENR]) P
IERE BN EERERE QT
Shandong International (Hong Kong)
Limited®?
IR B (HE) AR QA
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.®
FRERAREEAAC
Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd®
EEESEERARAF?
Harvest Global Investments Limited®
REBREEEERRARAY
Harvest Alternative Investment

Opportunities SPC for and on behalf
of Harvest High Speed Fund SP?

Interest in a controlled
corporation
X EEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
ZEEEEER

Beneficial owner

BEmEERA

Interest in a controlled
corporation

T EEER
Beneficial owner
E=EBA

Interest in a controlled
corporation
T LEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
i EEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

RELE S

Interest in a controlled
corporation
S48 B i

10,459,648,350

5,459,648,350

5,459,648,350

5,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

6,846,686,000

6,846,686,000

6,846,686,000

6,846,686,000

43.42% (L)

22.66% (L)

22.66% (L)

20.76% (L)

20.76% (L)

28.42% (L)

28.42% (L)

28.42% (L)

28.42% (L)
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Approximate

Name of substantial Number of percentage of

shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding

TERRER 4% BENROEE IBREAES LD

JS High Speed Limited® Beneficial owner 6,846,686,000 28.42% (L)
E=EBA

Tai Fung Bank Limited®

Security interest

REFITROHER AT
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd."
BEEFRMHERAE
Haitong International
Holdings Limited®
HRBERERARD R
Haitong International Securities Group
Limited®

BREBRESEEARQAY

Haitong International (BVI) Limited®

Haitong International Asset Management

RAE Rk

Interest in a controlled
corporation
ZEEEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
X EEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
T EEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
ZEEEER

Investment Manager

(HK) Limited®

BREREEER(FE) REKIE
BRAFY
Notes:

(1

(2

88

The calculation is based on the issued share capital of the Company of
24,089,384,437 shares as at 31 December 2021.

Shandong Hi-Speed (Hong Kong) International Capital Limited was wholly owned
by Shandong Hi-Speed (BVI) Capital Management Limited, which was in turn
wholly owned by Shandong Hi-Speed Group Co., Ltd.* (ILE S EEEBR A F]) .
Shandong International (Hong Kong) Limited was wholly owned by Shandong
Rural Economic Development and Investment Company Limited* ([LIE4& 2 #T4%
R E A A]), which was in turn wholly owned by Shandong Hi-Speed
Group Co., Ltd* (IR REE AR A F]) . Therefore, Shandong Hi-Speed Group
Co., Ltd* (L= FEEARATF) was deemed to be interested in totally
10,459,648,350 shares of the Company, comprising 5,459,648,350 shares held
indirectly through Shandong Hi-Speed (BVI) Capital Management Limited and
5,000,000,000 shares held indirectly through Shandong Rural Economic
Development and Investment Company Limited* (LLIE4& Ei&ERELE A
al).

6,846,686,000

28.42% (L)

1,215,048,516 5.04% (L)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (S)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (L)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (S)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (L)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (S)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (L)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (S)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (L)
1,215,048,516 5.04% (S)

RIER2021F12A31B AR AE #TRA
24,089,384, 437 D EHE -

Shandong Hi-Speed (Hong Kong) International
Capital Limited B3 Shandong Hi-Speed (BVI) Capital
Management Limited® & # A * M Shandong Hi-
Speed (BVI) Capital Management Limited f 1Ll
ReREEERAFAEZEREE - ILRER(F
B)ERATHALREENECERERERA
2EER  MUREENKEREZERERFA
LWEEREEBERAFAEEHESE - Bt - 1L
ReREEAERAFKEREHRIFELRAA
10,459,648,350% B {3 - B ¥5:%& B Shandong
Hi-Speed (BVI) Capital Management Limited
M % 5 #5,459,648,350 i ik 15 & &
LWRERNEERERERANHEREN
5,000,000,0000% i 5 ©
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JS High Speed Limited was wholly owned by Harvest Alternative Investment
Opportunities SPC for and on behalf of Harvest High Speed Fund SP, which was
owned as to 91% by Harvest Global Investments Limited, which was in turn
wholly owned by Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd., which was owned as to
40% by China Credit Trust Co., Ltd..

Tai Fung Bank Limited as chargee had security interest in those 6,846,686,000
shares under a share charge with JS High Speed Limited as chargor.

Haitong International Asset Management (HK) Limited was wholly-owned by
Haitong International (BVI) Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited. Haitong International Securities Group
Limited was owned as to 64.40% by Haitong International Holdings Limited,
which was in turn wholly-owned by Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.. Therefore, each
of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd., Haitong International Holdings Limited, Haitong
International Securities Group Limited and Haitong International (BVI) Limited was
deemed to be interested in the long positions of 1,215,048,516 shares (long
position) and 1,215,048,516 shares (short position) held by Haitong International
Asset Management (HK) Limited. Such 1,215,048,516 shares (short position)
involve physically settled unlisted derivatives.

Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the Shareholders are required to file
disclosure of interests forms (the “DI forms”) when certain criteria are fulfilled
and the full details of the requirements are available on the Stock Exchange’s
official website. When a Shareholder’s shareholdings in the Company changes, it
is not necessary to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless certain
criteria are fulfilled. Therefore, substantial Shareholders’ latest shareholdings in
the Company may be different to the shareholdings filed with the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The above statements of substantial Shareholders’ interests
are prepared based on the information in the relevant DI Forms received by the
Company as at 31 December 2021. The Company may not have sufficient
information on the breakdown of the relevant interests and cannot verify the
accuracy of information on the DI Forms.

(L) — Long position; (S) — Short position.

JS High Speed Limited B Harvest Alternative
Investment Opportunities SPC for and on behalf
of Harvest High Speed Fund SP2 & # A& + T
Harvest Alternative Investment Opportunities
SPC for and on behalf of Harvest High Speed
FundSPHZEBEREEEEARAGESR
9% xR MREEREEEERARAAMRE
BEECERERARZAEE MREERE
BERARBETRELTEREERATERLI0%
g e

KERITHRHOERDE (EAEMTA)RIS
High Speed Limited (fE/&#EE A) 2 g #H 5
B A %%6,846,686,000 08 1% 10 2 (R 5 4E
e

BEEREEEIR(EE) AR AR HAHaitong
International (BVI) Limited & & # & - M
Haitong International (BVI) Limited f1 /8 i@
BREHFSEBRARZERER - BBBEKRE
FEEARAFHEARERERER A A
F64.40% Hm - MEBBBERZERBR QA
HEREFRODAERAAEZERESE - Bt -
BRBLEBRMNDERAR - BBEEZERER
2w EBEEESSEARD A KHaitong
International (BVI) Limited & B # 18 A 1 /&
AR EEER(ERB)BERARMBEAEN
1,215,048,516 f% 47 & % 1,215,048,516 % %
BHREAER ° 521,215,048, 516 KBS K&
NEBYRWEIIE ETHTETA -

REBLARPEGEPFI360E  HEAAETHE
B RREEXBEEESRS((REERR
Bl BRARENEFIBRBZTE H AL
FAHERN EREAMIF AR AREEEE
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NEEAZET o Al - FERERARRZ &HHF
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report, the Company has maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

After HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 31 July 2020, Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited (“Crowe (HK)") was appointed as the new auditor of the
Company. Crowe (HK) will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment as an
auditor of the Company. A resolution for re-appointment of Crowe
(HK) will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Wang Xiaodong

Executive Director and Chairman
Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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The Company recognises the importance of corporate governance
since a high standard of corporate governance can help uplifting
confidence of both shareholders and potential investors of the
Company. In this regard, the Company aims at fully comply with the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code and the regulatory

requirements of the Code Provisions.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all
applicable provisions under the CG Codes except for the deviations
disclosed and explained in this report. The Company continues to
review and update the current corporate governance from time to

time to achieve a better level of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange as its own code.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set

out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities,
which assumes the Board’s primary responsibility to make major
decision such as composition and remuneration of the Board and
senior management, approval of notifiable and connected
transactions, selection of auditors, and strategic decisions in relation
to the Group’s business. The Board is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. All Directors should make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. In
addition, the Board can carry out its power either directly or delegate
various responsibilities to the Board Committees. The Board has also
delegated the power to oversee and make decisions on the daily
operational matters of the Group to the management of the
Company under the supervision of the Board and/or the Executive

Committee.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently consists of eleven Directors (including a Chairman
and a Vice-Chairman), the members of which include three executive
directors, four non-executive directors and four independent non-

executive directors. The specific list of the directors is as follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Zhijie

Mr. Liu Yao

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Jianbo (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Liang Zhanhai

Mr. Chen Di

Mr. Wang Wenbo

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Huanfei

Mr. Chan Wai Hei

Mr. Tan Yuexin

Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan

EEEAK

EXZgHAT - REFAXN(ETBHE
—BEFEM—REEFE) KEBHE : =
ZHTESF - NBRIFRTESFTNENAEL
FHNTEZ - ABREFTRENT :

BITES
FIREE(ERE)
FEANRE
EEbis

FERTES
KBNS ()
R
Bk &
SO

BYkHTES
BT IE T A

R 4 05 50 A
EEEkE

Jonathan Jun Yanst &£

92 China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERRE (&)

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. None of
the Directors had any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. The roles and functions of the
Board Committees are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The members of the Board are
experienced individuals having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, law, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. The mix of professional skills
and experience of the independent non-executive Directors is an
important element in the proper functioning of the Board. Their
participation in Board and committee meetings brings independent
judgment and helps to ensure that adequate checks and balances are
provided and that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into
account. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its power in
an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and timely
access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense if necessary. The
Company has established the Procedures for Directors to Seek
Independent Professional Advice to ensure that the Directors can
effectively perform their specific duties and need not to bear extra
financial expenses for obtaining opinions from independent
professional advisors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Company at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors and representing at
least one-third of the number of members of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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EXRERRSE (A)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF BYFHNTESNE AL

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive ~ANARIEEER B IFERTERRE LT
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to AR RIS 313G E B E 8 L 2 FEHER
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all & ° ARARR  2RBIUFATESRY
independent non-executive Directors to be independent. WEEIATL -

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS EENEREELTHE

During the Reporting Period, details of each Director attending the &N BEFZHEEFEE  EFE

@ @k

meetings of the Board and Board Committees and the general E@EZMBRAZERLNT

meetings are set out as below:

Number of meetings attended during the tenure/Number of meetings held during the tenure

EHRERERRE EHNETEERE

Strategic
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination Development Executive General
Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
ERER
Name 23 EzeE€8 ENZR®  HMZRe R4Zs¢ ZEE  HfZEE eV
Directors £
Executive Directors Hi7EZ

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Chairman) T/ B 4 (F /)
Mr. Liu Han ™" (resigned) BB (R EE)
Mr. Liu Honghui 2 (resigned) ~ ZIAT 8% 4™ (2§ {E)

Mr. Liu Zhijie UEARE

Mr. Liu Yao eyt

Non-Executive Directors FHIEE

Thu Jianbiao " Vice-chaiman) £ &% 54 " (B EE)
Mr. Liang Zhanhai 2HE%E

Mr. Chen Di Rikta

Mr. Gao Guicheng ™ (resigned) =& 5% 4= (B &)
Mr. Wang Wenbo "¢ Tmses e

Independent Non-Executive

Directors BUFHEE
Mr. Guan Huanfei BrErk
Mr, Chan Wai Hei RERLE
Mr. Tan Yuexin BEERE
Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan Jonathan Jun Yan%t £
Senior Management EREEE
Mr. Sun Qingwei ™9 BERELET

10710 20 26/26 n
34 10113 -
35 3 11116 071

10110 33 26/26 N

10110 n 25/26 n
55 n 10110 -

10 N
910 44 2 n N
35 0 0n
505 i -
910 3B n

10110 44 3B 20 N

10/10 44 3B 20 N

10110 44 2 n N

- 12 -
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During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in the above table, the
Chairman has held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors

Notes:
1. Mr. Liu Han resigned as an executive Director on 11 June 2021
2. Mr. Liu Honghui resigned as an executive Director on 28 July 2021

3. Mr. Zhu Jianbiao was appointed as a non-executive Director and vice Chairman
on 28 July 2021

4. Mr. Gao Guicheng resigned as a non-executive Director on 28 July 2021
5. Mr. Wang Wenbo was appointed as a non-executive Director on 28 July 2021
6. Mr. Sun Qingwei was appointed as the chief operation officer and a member of

the Executive Committee of the Company on 23 March 2021

TERMS OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years subject to retirement by rotation as required by

the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
Bye-laws, (i) any Director who is appointed to fill a casual vacancy is
subject to election by the Shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible
for re-election.

JEER - B ERAFRBI
EHTHERTT NG -

ESEeY AV

Bt
1. BIRAER2021F6 A1 BEBHIRITES
2. DI4THE R AR 202167 A28 ABHINITES

3. REIFZAAENR202157 A28 HEZ T AIEHNTT
B AEE

4. SERLER2021F7 A28 BB T IENITES

5. TR AR 202167 A28 HEZ T AIEHRTT
=

6. BEFELEN2021F3A23HEZE AR AT
AREBEBERMITEZEGKE

FHTESNIHMRESHER
EE

JEBEA  FRTEERBUFNTES
EARZEZBEFRRZF  BIREM
Al R AR Bl AR -

i

RIF EMRARABRZRE - (VEREMR
HERARREZRZENESTEHRRREE
BZBEEBRRRE LES  R(VHEES
BELB=ZFRESR X LNEER
B

T
o

o

FEILESReMERBRAR 2021 F£3f 95



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRSE (A)

DIRECTOR'S CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Codes stipulates that all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company had received from each of the Directors a confirmation of
training they received during the Reporting Period. A summary of
such trainings is listed as follows:

BEEIFBEEXERRE
EERTRITFAMEXEA6.51K5T8 -
SEEEYASHBEEERRE  UER

I 5 E AR R B RE - REATER MR T
ERzEEMRYaMBNBER THES
SELER - ARPIERESEZTN®RE
HINZIBdIER - BRI ZMELT :

Types of trainings

Directors BE R
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Wang Xiaodong TIREE Al
Mr. Liu Zhijie BIEREE L
Mr. Liu Yao Blz=k 4 L
Non-Executive Directors FHITEF

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao KAl kE L
Mr. Liang Zhanhai 2EERE Al
Mr. Chen Di PR M 5 4 L
Mr. Wang Wenbo FXORFEHE Al

Independent Non-Executive

Directors BIIHITEE
Mr. Guan Huanfei B8R FE A
Mr. Chan Wai Hei PR 4 Bk 2 £
Mr. Tan Yuexin EBEELE
Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan Jonathan Jun Yan’t 4

I: Attending training courses and/or seminars conferences.

Il Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s business, laws and
regulations or Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The Board encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional training that may be required from time to time keeping
abreast with the latest changes in relevant laws, regulations and the
business environment, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

MR R R g

I+ BIEBBARRER ZREEAMNEZRE
2T EERRES -

EXeurRET2AKRETREI
HEHRE - BRIAMTHEEER - BRI RE
BRENSHEE  UBERPHEAH
R IREE °
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Wang Xiaodong is the Chairman of the Board. The office of the CEO
has been vacant during the Reporting Period. Since Mr. Mei Weiyi's
resignation as CEO, the Company has been actively identifying
suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of CEO.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the day-to-day
operations of the Group have been delegated to other executive
Directors and the management of the Group responsible for different
aspects of the Group’s business. Decisions of the Company have
been made collectively by the executive Directors who execute
strategies set by the Board, and senior management of the Company
have been responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the supervision of the Board and the executive committee of
the Company. The Board will review this structure from time to time
and will make announcement in accordance with the applicable

Listing Rules when a new CEOQ is appointed by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Strategic Development Committee and the Executive
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8 April 2004. The
principal functions of the Audit Committee are, including but not
limited to:

(@)  being primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

(b)  to review the financial information of the Company;

(c) to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems; and

(d)  toreport to the Board on the matters set out in the CG Codes.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Wai Hei, Mr. Tan Yuexin and Mr.
Jonathan Jun Yan as well as two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Chen Di and Mr. Wang Wenbo. Mr. Chan Wai Hei, being the
chairman of the Audit Committee, is appropriately qualified as

required.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held four
meetings. Details of the individual attendance records of each
member of the committee are set out in the section headed
“Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings”. At the meeting, the
Audit Committee reviewed, among others, the annual results
announcement and annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, the interim results announcement and interim
report of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
2021 comprehensive risk audit report, the 2022 internal audit
development plans and audit plans, the internal control review report
of the independent consultancy firm, the risk management and
internal control system, the Group’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and the compliance of the CG Codes.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 8 March
2006. The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and

transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

() to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management by considering factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the

Group.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely, Mr. Liu Zhijie and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Guan Huanfei, Mr. Chan Wai Hei and Mr. Tan Yuexin.

Mr. Guan Huanfei is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee has held
three meetings. Details of the individual attendance records of each
member of the committee are set out in the section headed
“Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings”. At the meeting, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the duties and responsibilities of
the directors and senior management and discuss the remuneration

of the directors and senior management.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management of the Company by bands during the
Reporting Period is as follows:

RBEEEERTRTAMRXEB 5 -
ARASRERERERREHAANNME
ERBEFEIWT

Number
AE

Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 = _ 1,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T 0

HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000

The details of remuneration of each Director and the five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 26 March
2012. The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and to make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships of the

Company;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely, Mr. Wang Xiaodong, one non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Chen Di and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Chan Wai Hei, Mr. Tan Yuexin and Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan. Mr.

Wang Xiaodong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held
two meetings. Details of the individual attendance records of each
member of the committee are set out in the section headed
“Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings”. At the meeting, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, made recommendation to the Board in relation to the
appointments of Directors pursuant to the Directors Nomination
Policy adopted by the Company, made recommendation to the Board
in relation to the re-election of Directors and reviewed the Board

Diversity Policy.

DIRECTORS NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted the Directors Nomination Policy.
According to the Directors Nomination Policy, the Nomination
Committee shall identify qualified individuals to become directors
and nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and
make recommendation to shareholders for election as a Director of
the Company at the general meeting or appoint as Directors to fill

casual vacancies.

In evaluating and selecting candidates, the Nomination Committee
shall consider, including but not limited to the business experience
relevant and beneficial to the Company, diversity, character and
integrity in all aspects of the Board, individual career achievements,
independence and willingness to devote sufficient time to perform
the duties as member of the Board of the Company. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and to make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination Committee shall seek
advice from the Board members in advance. The Nomination
Committee offers recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment plans of Directors and recommends

candidates for it to consider and propose for election.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless a shareholder (not being the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
returns a notice in writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business at least seven days before the
general meeting and such notice is given of his intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been given to the
Company and includes personal information of such candidate as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The length of notice
being given as required under the Bye-laws commences from the
second day after despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ends no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting. If such notice is received less than
ten business days prior to the date of such general meeting, the
Company shall consider to postpone such general meeting in order
to give shareholders 14 days' notice for such proposal, and the notice

period shall be ten business days.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, and such policy
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. In
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates is based on a range of diverse perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, race, age, disability, nationality,
cultural and background family status, educational background and

professional qualification.

The nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
the Board members and compliance with relevant codes governing
board diversity under the Listing Rules. The nomination committee
will review the board diversity policy and its diversity profile from

time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experience, including the areas of real estate, accounting, financial
management, funds and education. They obtained academic
diplomas and degrees in various majors, including economics,
statistics, business administration, accounting and engineering.
Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from 36

years old to 64 years old.
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As at 31 December 2021, Board diversification in terms of types of

directors and age group is set out below:

HR2021F12A31H - ESEREEHT
FERIMFERAR HENZ TEE R 0
T

Types of
directors
525
Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive
WITES FEMITES Directors
B IEMITESE

Age Group
Fiias

Below 40 40 (inclusive) to 50
40T R IA T 40(Z8)=E 50 3%

While the Company recognises that the gender diversity of the Board
still need to be improved given its current composition of all male
Directors. In the future, the Nomination Committee will consider to
nominate female directors who have the necessary skills and
experience to our Board. The Nomination Committee will use its best
endeavours and on suitable basis to, by the end of 2024, confirm
and recommend at least one female candidate to our Board for its
consideration on appointment of a Director. The Board will strive to
gradually achieve an appropriate balance of gender diversity with
reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices.

50 (inclusive) to 60 Above 60
50( )% 60 5% 6057 &AL
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STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Strategic Development Committee on
28 July 2021. The principal functions of the Strategic Development
are, including but not limited to:

(@)  research and recommend on the medium-term and long-term

development strategy of the Company;

(b)  review and recommend on the medium-term and long-term
strategic goals and development plans of the business of the

Company;

(c) research and recommend on any other significant matters
affecting the development of the Company;

(d)  review the implementation of the above matters; and

(e)  other duties as delegated by the Board.

The Strategic Development Committee comprises one Executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Yao, two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao and Mr. Chen Di and one independent non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. Jonathan Jun Yan. Mr. Zhu Jianbiao is
the chairman of the Strategic Development Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Strategic Development Committee
has held one meeting. Details of the individual attendance records of
each member of the committee are set out in the section headed
“Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings”. At the meeting, the
Strategic Development Committee discussed the strategic

development planning of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Executive Committee since 11
February 2015. The Executive Committee shall have the powers and
authorities of the Board as the Board confers, except certain matters
which require Board’'s approval. The principal function of the
Executive Committee is to evaluate and assess the feasibility of new

projects and potential transactions.

The Executive Committee comprises three Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Liu Yao and Mr. Liu Zhijie, one
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhu Jianbiao and one senior
management member, namely, Mr. Sun Qingwei. Mr. Wang

Xiaodong is the chairman of the Strategic Development Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Executive Committee has held 26
meetings. Details of the individual attendance records of each
member of the committee are set out in the section headed
“Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings”. The Executive
Committee considered and approved various proposals when

necessary.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the Auditor to the Company during the Reporting Period is

approximately as follows:

BTEES

ARRAFR2015F2 A1MBRIATEZE
B oWTLECRBEEESTERTHNES
erHEIREE  HEEESSHANSE
T=ERIN - HITEZEGCEEBR BT
B E RO RER S 2 Al {TM -

HITZBEH=-RRTEFEDRRT IR
FE - BIEAEMBAERNLEE  —HIEH
TEFRYEALER —EZRREEEKXE
BRERLLEMAK - ENREERNITEE
EESE

BEHAN - WITEREEEET26REE °
ELRBEeXRB 2B FELEFERIRN
[EEM SR FLE ]|~ - RITEES

EREFSNLESHER -

BT =

FEER - BT AD TR OB
SEEBR 2 OSBRI T -

Amounts paid

and payable

ENREREEE

(HK’000)

Type of Services RAELE R (F#&x)
Audit services ZE AR 2,700
Non-audit services B ARTE 478
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ACCOUNTABILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true and

fair view of the Group's financial position.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue on a going concern basis.

The statement by the external auditors’ of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’

Report contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate for the Reporting

Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with relevant
laws by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems in accordance with the requirements of the
regulatory authorities. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems (the “Systems”)
and reviews their effectiveness annually. Such Systems are designed
to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has undertaken the overall responsibility for the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and established and maintained appropriate and
effective Systems. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Systems. The risk management
and internal control systems enable the Group to sustainably achieve
the Group’s objectives, to adapt to the current rapidly changing
regulatory environment, market and business, and to manage risks to
an acceptable and reasonable level based on the Group’s risk
appetite.

Based on its own business characteristics and operation and
management standards, the Group continues to improve the risk
management system, including the establishment of a comprehensive
risk management framework and system, and formulates specific risk
management practices, providing clear guidelines and guiding

principles for daily risk management and internal control.

The Group adheres to a sound philosophy of risk management, with
commitment to constantly enhancing its risk management standards,
continuously improves a comprehensive risk management system,
optimizes risk management models and methods, and promotes the
awareness of risk management among staffs to ensure the long-term

and stable development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, supported by the Audit
Committee as well as the internal audit department, has reviewed
the Systems pursuant to relevant laws and regulations and regulatory
requirements, including, but not limited to, the financial, operational
and compliance controls, and considered that such Systems are
effective and adequate for the current financial year. The Board and
the Audit Committee believe that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programme and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are

adequate during the Reporting Period.
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Risk management structure

The Board is the highest decision-making body in our risk
management structure, ultimately responsible for the overall risk
management of the Group. Under the authority of the Board, the
Group established the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee. Among them, The Executive Committee is primarily
responsible for the Group’s overall risk policies and specifies the
strategic structure and resources that are used to support the
Group’s risk management; The Audit Committee is primarily
responsible for supervising the Group’s internal control procedures,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management on a
regular basis, and making recommendations on risk management.

The risk management and internal control system of the Group has
adopted the three lines of defence model. Of which, the business
departments and subsidiaries are the frontline defenders, the Risk
Management Committee and risk control function departments of
the Group constitute the second line of defense and the internal
audit of the Group is the third line of defense. Three lines of defense
perform their respective duties and establish a comprehensive risk

management model.

1) Business departments and subsidiaries

The Group’s business departments and subsidiaries are the
frontline defenders against the Group’s risk management and
internal control, and must bear the frontline responsibility, in
order to prevent, monitor, evaluate and report on specific
business risks. At the same time, each business must be carried
out in accordance with the Group’s internal procedures and
within the scope of its authorisation.
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2) The Risk Management Committee and risk control
function departments
The management of the Group has established a
comprehensive risk management committee system to review
and approve resolutions on matters relating to risk
management in our daily operation. The main responsibilities
of the Risk Management Committee System include:

o Responsible for coordinating the establishment of overall
risk management system and reviewing the related
systems that are in line with the development of the
Group;

o Review and make decision for the setting, adjustment
and allocation of risk control limits for various types of

the Group ‘s investment business;

] Review the regular risk management reports of the
Group;

o Review and make decision for the management of major

risk issues in the business activities of the Group;

o Other duties assigned by the Board.
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The risk control function departments of the Group include Risk
Management Department, Legal Compliance Department and

other departments with supportive functions.

o The Risk Management Department is primarily responsible
for the identification, evaluation, prevention and
monitoring of the Group’s market risks and credit risks, as
well as promoting the implementation of risk-related

resolutions of the Group’s management.

o The Legal Compliance Department is primarily responsible
for the identification, evaluation, prevention and monitor

of the Group’s legal and compliance risks;

o The Group's other risk management supporting function
departments perform corresponding risk management
functions within the scope of responsibilities of each

department.

Internal Audit

The Company has set up the internal audit department which
reports to the chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee
of the Board. The Company aims to establish the third line of
defence of the Company’s risk management through the
establishment and improvement of a comprehensive internal
audit system, so as to continue to monitor the internal control
system, comprehensive risk management system, financial
activities, information system, financial obligation during their
tenure and significant risks, and urges the Company to
continuously optimize and improve the first and second line of
defense in risk management and control to adapt to changes in

the internal and external environment.
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Measures against various principal risks

1)

2)

112

Market risks

Market risks refer to those that may cause loss to the Group
due to unfavorable changes of market prices. Market price
includes but not limited to equity prices, commodity prices,
interest rates, and exchange rates, etc. The businesses of the
Group that involve market risks mainly include securities
investment business such as bond investment and stock

investment.

The Group promotes the establishment of a sound market risk
management system and conducts business activities involving
market risks on the premise that risks are measurable,
controllable and bearable. The Group regularly monitors and
reports on market risks, conducts special analysis on risk
matters to provide fundamental information and basis for the

decision-making of the Management concerning risks.

Credit risks

Credit risks refer to those that may cause loss to the Group due
to failures to perform their obligations stipulated in relevant
contracts by securities issuers, counterparties and debtors. The
credit risks currently faced by the Group are mainly
concentrated on the area of financial leasing business and debt

investments business.

The Group prevents and controls credit risk in a comprehensive

and full-process manner
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On one hand, the Group formulates the entry requirements
and due diligence requirements of the credit risk business, so as
to provide principle-based guidance for the commencement of
business and approval of projects. After the launch of the credit
risk business, the Group establishes and implements a pre-
approval system by conducting a comprehensive review of each
project, providing recommendations on risk prevention
measures over key risk factors inherent in the project and
issuing independent risk assessment reports, so as to support

the investment decisions.

On the other hand, after the launch of the credit risk business,
the Group conducts the prevention and control of credit risk by
establishing sound post-investment management and risk
monitoring and early warning and disposal mechanisms, which
mainly include the following aspects: firstly, establish and
implement a post-investment management system, assess the
risk status of the business on a regular basis; secondly, establish
post-investment early warning mechanisms; thirdly, establish
operational procedures and reporting mechanisms for the

internal management of risk matters.

Liquidity risks

Liquidity risks refer to those the Group may face when it is not
able to obtain sufficient funds in time at reasonable costs to
repay debts that are due, meet other payment obligations and
satisfy the funding requirements for ordinary business

operation.

The Group promotes the establishment of a sound liquidity risk
management mechanism and regularly evaluates the liquidity

level. Specific indicators mainly include liquidity coverage ratios.
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Subsidiaries’ risks

Subsidiaries commence business within authorization, and are
responsible for establishing an internal management system
that matches with their businesses and proactively managing
related business risks. At the same time, the Company
implements a vertical risk management mechanism for each
subsidiary, which requires each of the subsidiaries to report the
basic accounting information and risk matters to the Company
in a timely manner. The Group adopts the same standard and
the same process system to review the same type of business
of each business unit, which forms an integrated risk control

system.

Legal and compliance risks

Legal risks refer to the economic loss and damage of reputation
as a result of breach of contracts, lawsuits and legal disputes,
while compliance risks refer to the legal punishments, penalties
and damage of reputation caused by the violations of laws and
regulations in relation to the industry, internal policies and

existing compliance manual by the Group.

The Group has established the legal compliance department to
avoid such risks, and formulated policies, working process and
guidelines in respect of legal compliance. The legal compliance
department proactively handles and approves legal documents,
settles legal disputes, and offers opinions in relation to
compliance for various business plans and affairs of the Group.
The department also monitors regularly, and takes precautions
to, non-compliance risks such as money laundry, conflicts of
interests, information blockage, market malpractices, etc. At
the same time, for the sake of incorporation of a compliance
culture and the strengthening of related awareness, the Group
holds legal and compliance trainings for our staff from time to
time. The Group will update policies, working process and
guidelines in relation to legal compliance with respect to
business development and the change in laws and regulations,
on a timely basis.
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Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to

enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited (e.g. setting up relevant policies and procedures, laying
out requirements for proper authorization and approval for the
access and use of inside information and providing trainings to

directors, officers and employees).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board, with support from the Audit Committee, are responsible

for performing the corporate governance duties as set out below:

o To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Codes and
its disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

o To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Board performed the above duties
with the support of the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRSE (A)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The biography details of Ms. Du Ning and Ms. Chen Chun, our Joint
Company Secretaries, are set out in the section headed “Biography
of the Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Du and Ms. Chen complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training, respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct communication with
the Company. Shareholders who intend to put forward their
enquiries about the Company to the Board could send their enquiries
to the Company, with the contact details are as follows:

Address: 17th Floor, Agricultural Bank of China Tower, No. 50
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (For the
attention of the Joint Company Secretary)

Email: comsec@csfg.com.hk

Please provide full name, contact details and identification in order to
given effect thereto. The Company will not normally deal with verbal

Or anonymous enquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS" MEETINGS

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings if they are unable to
attend in person.

The procedure of the Company’s general meetings will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be
made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, members of Board committees,
appropriate management executives and the external auditors will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Pursuant to the bye-law 57 of the Bye-laws, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene a special general meeting. A special
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any 2 or more members holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid
up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such requisition
must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s registered office. If
the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
such requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more than
one half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene the
special general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Directors to convene such a meeting shall be reimbursed
to them by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRSE (A)

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Communication with shareholders and investors

The Company aims to maintain good relationships with Shareholders
and investors, and to enhance the transparency of its business
operations. The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

To ensure effective communication, the Company has adopted the
Shareholders Communication Policy, so as to enable them to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner and to furnish the
investors with equal and timely access to information about the
Company. The Company will also publish up-to-date information on
the updates on its business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Company'’s constitutional documents have not been amended.

REERHE
BEEREREERE

ARABBNEBRRREEERFTRTH
B UMBERBEEEZERE - AAF
ARERRAMNEREEEREER
B ARREBEHANERE 2 ZHRBERRK
EOEEEREEER - ARRTHABRER
RAEMERENMERBEEARENCZER
o ABEBRRMEEEFLZERER

-
E °

RIBERRBR - ARADRMBREE
B - ARERBCRERMBRER MTEEE
N REREEARFEREIGEAR
ﬁﬁﬂ°$“ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ¥
BaENEROSMEN  MBEEH &
%%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁﬂ*%@”%Ai%
Bg o

BEXHF
R|ERA - KRAFZEBE XA A

118  China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Crowe

To the Shareholders of China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 133 to 391,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BARELEE

BFREZ SR

RIERFINERHE - BREZFELSY
BB AYGAMBRRZBELRA/E
22EE RMIERBEREAVBHRERL
HABARCREZSFEE - RATEY
ZEFHRREHEBER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNTEEHREELSE

Impairment assessment of finance lease receivables, loans receivables and trade and other receivables

EURERE BUERKES REMEWKEZHEFE

Refer to notes 24, 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements
FLRGEUMBERENI24 - 25526

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of finance lease receivables,
loans receivables and trade and other receivables were approximately
HK$868,747,000, HK$3,691,733,000 and HK$1,048,184,000 respectively.
Accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$1,554,237,000,
HK$397,770,000 and HK$393,287,000 was provided for finance lease
receivables, loans receivables and trade and other receivables respectively.

R2021F12A310 > BURERE  BREFRKE S LAMEKKIAR
E1E 5 5 4 %868,747,0008 7T * 3,691,733,000/% 7T & 1,048,184,000
B VESRREKRERE  ERERKE S KA MERTIERE
FHREEHE411,554,237,000% 7T+ 397,770,0007% 7T % 393,287,000%

TG °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of finance lease receivables,
loans receivables, and trade and other receivables
included, but were not limited to:
BMAHEREYRUBMENE BRUERKE
SHEEMERFIEETRENEZEFBEER
RA

. Understanding and validating the credit
control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on
periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses
allowance of receivables;

s THREGEEBEBETNEERHRER
BRETHRTBHREKFERFEZE
AN RBEEERRBNRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

BRERZSEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Impairment assessment of finance lease receivables, loans receivables and trade and other receivables (Continued)

EURERE BUERREZREGBURRZRENEE)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,009,000, HK$356,875,000 and HK$28,671,000 was provided for
finance lease receivables, loans receivables and trade and other receivables
respectively. Management applied judgment in assessing the expected credit
losses. Receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually for
provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer and its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The
expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit loss
experience and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
BE201F12ANAEFE  DhtELREEE BUERRES
T H At & U K TE &F 4R A (8 /65 48 493,009,000 7T+ 356,875,000 T &
28,671,000 7T - ERERFERBEEFERERERHE - RENBHB
RES WO ERREREFROTFABNRUFREBTERERE -
TRAREARAGERRSBHATELTAEETH ARG EREES
B THREFEKREMTEN  BhEREPUHERARKER - ERE
HEEBEXERNEAFESENAREET - EREEEREIRE
FEEEFRLRET  URABRARBRYEETFEERKFERNNE
RIRATREIE B A

We identified the impairment assessment of finance lease receivables, loans
receivables and trade and other receivables as a key audit matter due to the
magnitude of the finance lease receivables, loans receivables and trade and
other receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in determining
the expected credit losses allowance of the finance lease receivables, loans
receivables and trade and other receivables.

ARENRERE BRERRESRAMBURBESEEN  REEE
FURERE EURERREZRHEMERFENEREEBRERR Y
Rftst RAE - ZMEEERERE  BERERRES Rt EKKIEN
BEN S AEREZEE -

Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of
ageing profile of receivables by checking to
the underlying agreements;
BRZERBGE - MRS ERRER
BRHEREIRE ¢

Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of receivables against bank
receipts; and

DASR 1T b2 o 15 R 5 PR MR SROB RO ELAR 9 3R
B &

Obtaining management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of
receivables. Corroborating and validating
management'’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern, correspondence
with the customers, evidence from external
sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances
of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-
looking information used in management's
assessment.
BEEREHRKTIEEREEBREED
Tz RERBREEEBNTZRERES
RmER - BEPHBHARIMNGER (B E
HRRFHBRR BB LNFAERER Y
EREMNZT RN AEARITERET
MHISRE) o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

BRERZSEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Valuation of level 3 financial instruments

FEREMIAZMEE

Refer to note 40 to the consolidated financial statements
FLHEA B mEM 40

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
classified as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy (“Level 3 Financial
Instruments”), amounted to approximately HK$2,826,671 and
HK$1,565,118,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021.

20215128318 DERRABERETZE=ZRZERABEFA
Hi2ER&((ZAREF AR E2EKRE D2 eREERZA R B
ABR([BAREHABR 2 eRBEE([E=REBITAHHAOR
2,826,671/ 7T ]2 1,565,118,0007% 7T

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net fair value losses on level 3
financial assets at FVTOCI is approximately HK$58,938,000 and the net fair
value gains on level 3 financial assets at FVTPL is approximately
HK$305,265,000.

HE201F1N2ANBLFE  BAAEMARMZARGECF =R/
BENAAEBEFENASS938000ET MEAABEMABEZES
HemEENAABEWEFEAK /3052650008 T -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of Level 3
Financial Instruments included, but were not limited
to:
BMRE-RemIACREET 2 BFRER
TRR :

Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and the processes performed by the
independent professional valuers and the
management’s review process of the work of the
independent professional valuers with respect to the
valuation of Level 3 Financial Instruments.
TRBUZRMGEMETORERGLERF - W
LEREHBUEEMEMERE=-ReRIA
ZHETERETZEERFT -

Evaluating the competence, integrity and
independence of the independent professional
valuers; and their experience in conducting valuation
of similar financial instruments.
AEBVERGEM BRREE  BEREBYL
o UARREETEUSRIARKE KR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

FEEREIE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Valuation of level 3 financial instruments (Continued)

E-REMIAZMEEE)

In determining the fair values of Level 3 Financial Instruments, the Group
engages independent professional valuers to perform valuation of the aforesaid
Level 3 Financial Instruments.
REFFE=-REeRIAZAAER
E-MemMT AENHE-

EREZEBUERMAEMY L

We identified the valuation of the aforesaid Level 3 Financial Instruments as a
key audit matter due to the degree of complexity involved in valuing the
financial assets, the significance of the judgment and estimates made by the
management in determining the inputs used in the valuation models and the
subjectivity in determination of Level 3 fair value given the lack of availability of
market-based data.

BB LAE=FemIAZHEARNABRERSE  HHNHERE
EETHERMS R EREE  RETHERAMERE ARBRIER
F%W%%&EﬂZEE%M&Eﬂiuﬁ%%%%Z%%W%%TEﬁ

BonERMER FTEREMH

REILERS RS

Obtaining the respective independent valuation
reports and discussing with management about the
valuation of the Level 3 Financial Instruments, and
together with our own internal valuation specialists,
where necessary:

EREEEMRS  TRE=ReBIAZ
REREREUREMEFOANBEEZR(W
BRE)ETMNR

o reviewing the appropriateness of the
valuation techniques and assumptions based
on the industry knowledge;

o BETEMIBAGERMERREEE

. testing the appropriateness of the key inputs
by independently checking to the relevant
external market data and/or relevant historical
financial information; and

o EREVLERBENITEEER %
BARLHMBENRRIZHA BB A8
R

. inquiring and assessing the rationale of the
management’s judgment on the key inputs.

o THRIHEEEBREIRBABBMEH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

FEEREIE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Impairment assessment of the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets

HEREVEEREDERENG

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

F2 MM RERME20

The Group has intangible assets including trading right, license, computer
software and goodwill with carrying amounts of approximately HK$500,000,
HK$420,290,000, HK$4,670,000 and HK$707,020,000 as at 31 December
2021 respectively, which are allocated to the cash-generating unit ("CGU")
included in financial leasing segment, financial technology segment, investment
in securities segment and unallocated segment.

R2021F12A31H ESEZEREEREEEES 4500000/

T+ 420,290,000 7T 4,670,000,%x&707,020,000,%7t2*\%ﬁé o
@ﬂéﬂﬁi1¢&ﬁi§*ﬁﬁa;§ﬁaﬂ LEARERENS S HEew
DE - BEREBEDHRADPEN BRI R CEAEN([REELE
fr])e

In determining the recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets, the
Group engaged the independent professional valuers to perform such valuation.
The valuation is determined based on the cash flow projection/value-in-use
model for the CGU discounted to their present values and it requires the use of
key assumptions, including the discount rate, terminal growth rate and gross
margin, taking into account the financial budgets approved by the directors of
the Company based on the management’s experience from the financial leasing
segment and license business segment, and also management's expectations
for the market development. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
impairment loss of approximately HK$30,244,000 had been recognised on
license. No impairment on goodwill and other intangible assets was recognised
to profit or loss.
NETHERENEEZTNOSER - EEEZREBUEXLEME
ThE  BENERMREREZACELBU R RERNFRE
ERAET  HFEZEAIZRR  EEMBX RRERXREMNX
WEEH R BEAREEMIEENERERRERES BRIBEEBD S
EEZ%\%&EZ@%ﬁ%%’é@ﬁﬁi,ﬁﬂz,@ﬁ%ﬁ% c HE2021512A31
ALEFE B EmRARERED30244,0008 T - HEHERELGE
FEEREN RS THER -

Our procedures in relation to the management'’s
impairment assessment of the carrying amount of
goodwill and intangible assets included, but were
not limited to:

BMEREREHBEREV EERREETA
BRI 2 R BREERRR :

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer
engaged by the management;
AHEEEERBENBELERMEM  BRER -
RROREEIL

Understanding the Group's impairment assessment
process, including the valuation model adopted and
the key assumptions used and the involvement of
independent professional valuer appointed by the
Group;

TH BEREAENGERE  BEARAZMG
BES - Fﬂiﬁﬁi{gfﬁmu& BERBEMES
B EERMERMZ2EER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

BRERZSEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Impairment assessment of the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

BERENVEERBERENME(E)

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets as a
key audit matter due to its complexity and the inherent subjectivity arising from
the significant management judgment.
BMEHEREVEERREREN G RBREREE  DHNEEM
HRERBELERAGMSENRNETBIL -

Evaluating the appropriateness of valuation model
adopted and the key assumptions used;
AEARAZEERARAERZ EERARE

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the cash flow
forecasts prepared by the management by
comparing the historical cash flow forecast with the
actual performance;
BRAKELHeRERARERRBETLER -
AEEREEMGRNRSRERNZE L KR
14

Evaluating the reasonableness and arithmetic
accuracy of free cash flow and discount rate adopted
in the valuation model with the assistance from our
internal valuation experts; and
REMRBEEEROHE T - FREERRMR
B ERASRERMRE S BUREESR
it R

Evaluating the potential impact of the impairment
assessment based on the reasonably possible
changes of the key assumptions used in valuation
model.
BEGEEXAPAEAZEIERRNABAIRLE
g EREN G EEYE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter
HRELEE

BRERZSEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Valuation of the investment property

REMERLE

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
B2HRAMEREME18

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment property was stated at fair
value of approximately HK$890,000,000.
2021 12A310 » ESENREMERA A E4890,000,000% T3

Management has engaged an independent external valuer to perform a
valuation of the investment property. The external valuer used the direct
comparison approach in the valuation of the investment property. The valuation
of the investment property requires significant judgment and estimates by the
management and the valuer.
ERECDEEBUIBEEMERENFETRE - N BREMERER
HEOEHREMFETRE - HREVFETHERTZERE RMEERME
B RHER R A& -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment property included, but were not limited
to:

AR ENEGEEETZRFEEATRY :

Evaluating management'’s valuation process of the
investment property and assessing the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors;
AEERELREMRETRENER  L@B
ZRMEFTREEOREREMALERREZH
KFRATE LR ERFERRAOANERR

Evaluating the valuer's qualifications, expertise and
objectivity;
AEEEMNER  FENBRFBIL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

FEEREIE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEGNTEERRELSE

Valuation of the investment property (Continued)

REMEMEE)

In determining a property’s valuation, the valuer took into account properties of
a similar nature, condition or location and made adjustments to comparable
market transactions to arrive at the final valuation.

REEMEGER  FEMESEME KRS BRTNYE  THEE
AELBMSXHELRAE  NERRRME -

As the fair value changes were significant to the financial statements and
significant judgment is required in determining the fair values, specific audit
focus was placed on this area.
ARAAEEHUIBRAMEEEAN  ERETLAAERTEEEAE
HIE - AUeshHABEETRERZ

With the assistance of our own internal valuation
specialists, we performing the following:
ERFBANANBEEZRHET - ZASET
T&E

reading the valuation report for the property,
holding discussions with the valuer to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation approach
and the market transactions used (including
adjustments to comparable market
transactions) for determining the fair value for
the purpose of the Group’'s financial
statements;
- HIEVEMGERS  GEEMETHRN
Ay ERENBRREETAAEMER
BORERTERTSERSEEAE(REY
AELBZSIELHNARE)

- comparing the market transactions used by
the valuer to our knowledge of the property
market and published external data, such as
transaction records by property agencies and
the Land Registry;

- BEERAERANTERZERMENE
MsMRERERMAONBEBETL

8 mpERERETESR HRH

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating to
the fair value measurement of the investment
property in the context of the applicable financial
reporting standards.

ATh B A ) TS RS
AEFEMELNRER

AIfE - ARENER
-

)

REILERS RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Hi&E#

EETHHMENEER - HMENBET
HNFRANAEEN  BTREGAY
BaRRRMWZBREHRE

BB GAMBRERNBER L MREEM
ER BAIAAEREEMERNERER
FAMERE®

BEBMBRAMBHRROET - TN
BEERMEELMER  EUBEEFR  ZE
HMEHNREREaMBRRAEMER
AHBRETM T BB FEEREERE
UFFHEERFERBORABER o ER A
EMITHOITE  IRRMBLSEMLERE
EER#ERERL - ROUFTEREZFE -
FEEHE - BRVRBEMA®RS -

ESEHAAMBHRRARENE
(5

EXARARBEESTNAGRHNE
B IEREER R EBCRFHEDDH B E
ERBEEEMF 5 REFHRE - X
HBERR/ESEMBREROBBIFE
P P R RF Bl 8H RR T S8 B B K R AR PR AL PR
FORNEESEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

FEILESReMEBRBRAR 2021 F£3f

EEHAAMBRRARENE
Eo)

ERBEAVBRRE  EFAEN
ff BEREFELEMNESD  LHEERB
MTHRBEESBELEERBOER - URE
ARBECERGHER RIEFEHE
# BEREBRAFILLE  HBIEEM
ERONERSTR -

B 5 B B 75

BN R B R AR S B IS R AR
MEE

BMWERE  RYESEMBHRRELES
AEHEARREFRER MG BN ENHER
FORIS A BRE  THABERMER
MZBERE - RPIRZE1981FARE
RAPEFEIOEMMTE - EREZ BB R®
& BRUE ZINAIRE B E AL B A o F A
BMARAFEZATAERNEMALER
HAERE - AERBESKFHRE
BrEREERB(EERFEDETH
Bit ERX-BABERRAGFER B E
B oo SERRBRA AT A ARFF S ER AR 51 AR - 4P
REEEHTMEBRELERATETE
ERERBZSGRAMBERRAFLHOE
FRTE - RIA B0 8RR B AT R AR AF &
* o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BB S E RS M BRI
MY EfE47)

ERB(RABFNEDETENNBER
FoRMERTEXRHE  RETEXE
REREE o AN

—  BBIAE A AR EEE R R M E
RAaMBRRFEEAHERRMEDW
R - REFRATEARFUNES
BEERAR - ARERZRENEE D
ERE  FREMERMWER -
MRS RER  RE &
BER  ERRL - FOEERAE
282 £ - BB REERBREKEFEM
BEROMEAHERRA R RSN AK
REEAEERMEMMERNHERR
st By R o

- THREEFHEEOATES - AR
tEENESREF  EBMALIE
T ERERENNEREER
2R

ik

Ykl

- HAEEARBEAERRNRE N
LEEHE A MAERENSE
e

- HEERABEKZSFERNR
EHEFLER  REMEDRNE
AHERE MESLFERFTERAG
MBBNEXTHEEME - i Al s
By BEEENBELERNE
EEARE - WREFMRBREFEE
RAMEENE - AE 02 EZBE R
ETHPRFBEAEIBRAVBRR
TERHEBERE BREEHENEE
TR ARMEERRIEREE
R BN EREERNBEZEE
BEBHUEFARSHESBE - A
M- AREERXBRAAELER &

SETRFERLE -

130  China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

BB S E RS M BRI
MNEE#E)

- HEEAMBHRIRNEBEEIN®RS
A EBENAET  BEEE UK
REMBHRRELTAERRBERR
HMEIR e

- B BEEERERBAEXBLEDHN
MBENERRRE  BENER
BE NBHEAVBRRER
BER-RMAEAE EXKEEFNT
[ BEBMHT - RSB ER
EEREEME -

Bt (AR el RESRTHE FERX

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats of safeguards

applied.

BEETTERE -

AREANEFER(BERMESHA TR
AHEARZENNEMNEANRRE) BERE

BPERNEZZBESRIBH - S
ENGARELEMHBERERER
I 84t P8 5B A Al L R KRS

& B B
gexE

and HPIBIENMAREMNEMEE UK

A °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHEHRE (F)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fong Yat Sing, Cyrus.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

Fong Yat Sing, Cyrus
Practicing Certificate Number PO7150

BB S E RS M BRI
MNEE#E)

tHREZZEQBBENERT  RMAEE
MLEHHARPRAMBERNVES R
REE  AmMEBKEARESTER - HME
TR ER R ELEIR  RIBERE
RAARARBREELER  HERKF
RHBERT mRAEERERMBER
BBEREHEKNBEHEARBBEENQ
T RPPRETNEERS P BBZE
I8 o

HARNBY ZBMBESHRITEBEABA

AR -

BEHE(ER)EMEEMERLH
HMEEETRD
FB - 2022537284

FEE
HEFEZRIP0O7150
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FmEZTHWER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
EE20219F12FA31HILFE
2021
20214
Notes HK$’000
B &E FHxT
REVENUE Uk & 6 1,065,661
COST OF SERVICES BR 75 B 25 (327,030)
Gross profit E7 738,631
Other income E U A 25,055
Other gains and losses, net HEMizmREE - F5E 246,636
Impairment losses on financial assets & R4 &l & & FE
recognised, net of reversal B8 (R A E ) 9 (388,555)
Fair value gains on financial assets BARBEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, CREEZARE
net Wes - JF5E 11 12,643
Administrative expenses THHAXZ (377,230)
Finance costs B & KA 10 (269,611)
Share of results of associates JEMREE N R ELE 21 11,286
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLATE ] 11 (1,145)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERiEe, (FxX) 14 12,203
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REERT(FBE) 11,058
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE{E AREZ% ) (E18) -
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIEZ SN (314,660)
Holders of perpetual capital KEBERTEEAA
instrument 345,070
Non-controlling interests PR (19,352)
11,058
LOSS PER SHARE BRER
Basic and diluted HA K #E HK(1.31) cents

16 (1.31)#4L

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

o

FEILESRSMERBRAR 2021 F3k

2020
20204
HK$'000
FAT
1,272,354

(464,173)

808,181
46,163
136,340
(1,189,669)
802,375
(425,394)

(246,105)
64,844

(3,265)
(15,042)

(18,307)

(284,700)

259,048
7,345

(18,307)

HK(1.17) cents

(1.17)741L

BE P 2 B SE B AAR & B 75 R W0 4B AR BB
2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

meEzEWEE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
EFE2021F12A31HIEFE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year REZRF,(EE) 11,058 (18,307)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hiemlias, (8)

Item that will not be reclassified TeEFHBEEDCHE -
to profit or loss:

Fair value change on equity instruments 238 A& A A B AHtL

classified as financial assets at PHWZZ CREEDN

fair value through other BT AZARBEEZY

comprehensive income 22 (rRy0)) (242,866)
Items that may be reclassified HEAEEF D ERZ

subsequently to profit or loss: HAH -
Fair value changes on debt instruments 38 BIE A x Bt A H A

classified as financial assets at FHEEZEMEEN

fair value through other BB TAZAREES

comprehensive income 22 (117,371) (70,056)
Release of FVTOC| reserve upon disposal 7 H &% A 1 Bt A H A

of debt instruments at fair value FHEHRENEELEE

through other comprehensive income  fRERIZ A A BT AEH A

EHEW R 24,326 7,178

Exchange difference arising on MEBINEBEEZ

translation of foreign operations P& X Z= %8 73,679 218,570
Reclassification adjustment for foreign E#sEHEARFRNEE Y

operations disposed of during the year g o) 2 7% 36 (2,571) _
Other comprehensive loss for the year AN E Hith 2 E18 (674,507) (87,174)
Total comprehensive loss for the year R4 € 2 H & 18 4258 (663,449) (105,481)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEAFER2A K

for the year attributable to: (E1B) s -

Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE/ RSN (985,126) (377,134)
Holders of perpetual capital instrument XZE&E AT A#AH A 345,070 259,048
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR 2 (23,393) 12,605

(663,449) (105,481)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  B& [t 2 ¥ 3% 1% ik 45 & B4 78 3R 25 &9 48 AR 6

financial statements. S e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ra IR &

As at 31 December 2021
20214 12H31H

Notes
B &E

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &R 17
Investment property BEMHE 18
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19
Intangible assets mRAE 20
Interests in associates REtE N A 2= 21
Financial assets at fair value through 1R 2 Bzt AH M2 mEIKE 2

other comprehensive income TEEE 22
Financial assets at fair value through &2 7 BEE ABHEH

profit or loss TRIEE 23
Finance lease receivables JEN R ETRE 24
Loans receivables FEMWE T 25
Deferred tax assets BEHRBEE 32
Total non-current assets EMBEELEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR EF AEME2E K 2

other comprehensive income TEREE 22
Financial assets at fair value through 1A 2 Bzt AIB&E 2

profit or loss TREE 23
Finance lease receivables FEM R ERE 24
Loans receivables FE U E 3K 25
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b fEU GRS 26
Restricted cash R HE e 27
Cash held on behalf of clients BEFESTNK 28
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBASEEY 28
Total current assets MEEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HubERRIBRERT B 29
Lease liabilities HEBE 30
Borrowings BE 31
Tax payables FEBTIIR
Total current liabilities e BERE

2021
20214
HK$°000
TR

60,584
890,000
43,634
1,132,480
2,176,644

2,356,830

43,195
366,996
733,863

14,977

7,819,203

3,081,963

6,188,427
501,751
2,957,870
1,048,184
3,638
15,115
1,334,300

15,131,248

199,041
15,676
10,383,810
1,738

10,600,265

2020
20204
HK$'000

FET

12,677
39,699
1,273,595
2,128,901

2,281,229

55,922
547,554
132,373

6,471,950

2,603,310

5,858,263
759,072
3,203,909
933,805
88,358
1,779
5,045,748

18,494,244

302,023
13,270
7,442,624
677

7,758,594
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

mEBmBRRE (F)

As at 31 December 2021

H2021F12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
e FHET FAET
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 4,530,983 10,735,650
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 12,350,186 17,207,600
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Borrowings EE 31 3,563,413 7,386,690
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 31,207 30,502
Other payables and accruals HipEt BN EE R 29 22,652 21,910
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIAEE 32 120,411 111,750
Total non-current liabilities ERBBELRE 3,737,683 7,550,852
Net assets BEFE 8,612,503 9,656,748
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR & E
Issued capital BETRA 33 6,022 6,022
Reserves #HE 1,402,629 2,387,755
Equity attributable to owners A EEB A FEAS R
of the Company 1,408,651 2,393,777
Perpetual capital instrument KEEATA 34 7,118,083 7,073,413
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR R 2 85,769 189,558
Total equity B 8,612,503 9,656,748

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issued by the board of directors on 28 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Liu Zhijie
ZIER
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REMBHRROKHEEEN202293A
28 AL AE R - WRATEFEAE
RE

Liu Yao
2%
Director
EF
W& [ 2 B 5E R B AR & B 75 3k 2% /Y 48 K 3D
fj\ o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214F12F31 HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ROTRENES
Fair value
through
other
Share Share  Capital comprehensive Perpetual Non-
Issued  premium  options redemption Contribution income  Statutory Translation Accumulated capital ~ controlling
capitl  account  reserve  reserve  surplus reserve  feserve  reserve losses ~ Sub-total instrument interests Total
BOEA
us B Efp2ENE KEER
BRORE ROKER BRERRE i E4ERH e EERE ENRE  ZiER it I8 FERER &3t
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn  TER  TER TEL T T TER TR TEL TEr TEr AL TER
(Note ) (Noteil) — (Noteil) — (Notel) (Note) — (Note vi) (Note 34)
(W) (k) (M) (W) (W) (Mshi) (Msk34)
At1 January 2020 R0NE1A18 6,113 4,784,098 40,150 1177 154517 531,756 37995 (306453 (3659708) 2959705 7114799 176,953 10,251457
(Loss)proft for the year KER(BE)/EH - - - - - - - - (847000 (84700 259048 735 (18307)
Other comprehensive incomeloss) ~~ AEEEMZE
for the year Wi/ (B8):
Fair value changes on equity SEEEDABTA
instruments classfied as financial ERENE SR
assets at fair value through other BENMERTAY
comprehersve income RS - - - - - (242,866) - - - (4866) - - (4866)
Fair value changes on debt SEERDABHA
instruments classfed as financial ERENE SR
assets at far value through other BENERIAL
comprehensive income LhEEY - - - - - (70,036) - - - (1005) - - (1005)
Release of FVTOC reserve upon RHERALETA
disposal o debt nstruments at EHAENENER
fairvalue through other TAKRRELS
compreheniieincome AR EYE
il - - - - - 7178 - - - 7178 - - 7178
Exchange difference aring on BEBNERELL
translation of foreign operations 353 - - - - - - - 13300 - 2133100 - 5200 218,570
Other comprehensive (ossjincome ~ AEEEM2E
forthe year (B)/Ma - - - - N - 330 RN A
Total comprehensiv (loss)income KER2E(BE) /%
for the year 4% - - - - - (305,744) - 23310 (847000 (377134 259,048 12605 (105481)
Distrbution to perpetual capital AKEERTERAA
nstrument holders Mk - = E o - - - - - - (300434) - (300434)
Cancelltion of issued capital HEERARA (91 (18379 - 9 - - - - - (188,794) - - (18879)
Release of fairvalue through other ~ BREALEF AL
comprehensive income reserve 2ENGEE - - - - - (507,78¢4) - - 507784 - - - -
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12A318 6,022 4595304 40,150 1268 154577 (281,772) 37,995 (93,143)  (3436624) 2393777 7013413 189558 9,656,748
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

ReEZ2BR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214F 12831 HILFE
Share
Issued  premium
capital  account
(Notei)
(Hti)
At 1 January 2021 RE1A18 4,595,304
Profit for the year FERER
Other comprehensiieincomelloss) ~~ AEEEMZE
for the year W/ (FE):
Fair value changes on equity ABBELAEHA
instruments clasiied as financia Ep2ENaz 68
asets at fair value through other BENMERTAY
comprehersve income MERS
Fairvalue changes on debt ABBRAAEIA
instruments clasfied as financia Ep2ENaz 68
assets at fair value through other EENERIEY
compreensive income MERS
Release of FVTOC reserve upon WHERRREA
dlsposalof debt nstruments at Ep2ERANER
fairvalue through other TABRRENS
comprehensive income STAEM2 Al
fEh
Exchange difference aring on BERNEREL,
transation of foreign operations EiEE
Reclasifcation acjustment for Efif b
foreign operations disposed of ERHEL
during the year R
Other comprehensive (oss)income ~~ REEEH2E
for the year ()4
Total comprefensive (oss)income. A4 E 2 (B8 /W
forthe year ag
Distrbution to perpetual capita MAEERIERAA
instrument holders 7k
Release of fairvalue through other ~~ BRRAL BT AL R
comprehensive income resenve 2ENRER
Release of non-contolling interests —~~ RHEMBRF%
upon disposal of subsidaries B
At 31 December 2021 RONE12A318 4,595,304

Share
options
reserve

(Note i)
(Batii)

40,150

40,150

Attributable to owners of the Company

LI N

Capital
redemption Contribution
reserve  surplus

&ARE
fif REER
HKS'000 i

HKS'000
THT
(Note iv)
(Kitiv)
1,524,577

1268 1,524,517

Fair value
through

other
comprehensive
income

reserve
49

HK$'000
T
(Note v)

(281,772

(652,570)

(117311)

(745,613)

(745,613)

(6,226)

(1,033613)

Statutory
reserve

EERf
HKS'000

T
(Note vi)
(v

37,99

37,99

Translation Accumulated

reserve

Eiiifh
HK$'000
T

(93,143)

(@5mM)

15,149

(17,994)
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losses

(3,436,624)

(314,660)

(314,660)

(3,745,058)

Sub-total

e
HK$'000
TEn

23981

(314,660)

(652,570)

(117371)

21326

11720

(@5m)

(670466)

(985,126)

1,408,651

Perpetual Non-
capital ~ controlling
instrument  interests

FERES

HK$'000

T T
(Note 34)
(Hi4)

10343 189558 9,656,748

w5010 (1935) 11,058

21326

(4041) 73619

(@5m)

(&041)  (674,507)

w5010 (23393)  (663449)

(300,400) (300,400)

(80.3%)  (803%)

711808 85769 8612503




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

=
)

BEEBXR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium account

Share premium account represents the excess of proceeds received over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses. Pursuant
to the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Share options reserve

Share options reserve relates to share options granted to employees under new
share option scheme. Further information about share-based payments to
employees is set out in note 35 below.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose from the reduction of the nominal value of the
issued capital of the Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus arose from capital reorganisation in previous years. Under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

o it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

3 the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate
of its liabilities.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) reserve

As at 31 December 2021, the FVTOCI reserve included net fair value loss of
approximately HK$877,140,000 (2020: HK$218,344,000) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss and net fair value loss of approximately
HK$156,473,000 (2020: HK$63,428,000) that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve fund are made out
of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements of the PRC
subsidiaries. The amount should not be less than 10% of the profit after tax as
recorded in the statutory financial statements unless the aggregate amount
exceeds 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

FEILESReMEBRBRAR 2021 F£3f

Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

1% 40 5 18 R

Bt it R S E MR 2 B8 BB AR AR
EORBEEREROBTHE - REBREE
RAE - AR R 2 R 1% (B AR AR T
RHE -

BRERE

BREFRGERETBEEFARTREAEZE
BHENER - BRETRE ZURMNDBELENN
RZHE— T ERFN T X3S »

BAEE#E

EARBEOFEEZHEHBEROBEIRARRE
BITBRAEEMELS

BEHRHR

BERBRREREFEZEABAEMES - RIE
BREQE  ARRZEHBHRAEIK
AR WMETIERT - ARRTEREMR
M EIRSRNRBSEEH DK

. AR RBRE RN A BRI & EE T F
Al =%

. HEEZAZAEEAMERAARZ

#EE -

RAREFAHMEZARSZ((RAAREFAH
2 E WS HEE

B2021%F 128318 BAAEBEFAHEME
AREHEEREITSETIETRENAAR
{E /&5 18 )% %8 £1877,140,000 % 7T (2020 4F :
218,344,000 L) R EBEAREEHHEE
BmM AR EREFEL156,473,000/8 T
(20204 : 63,428,000 T) °

EEME

REBEEERFRBIETEARIME ([HE])E
TREES - ZRFEESOBFORE T RSB
REVEEMBREMFFORBESN - B
A SR ROETE B 75 3R 3% A 8715 WO BR 52 120 7
M10% BRIFEERETENBARZME
REI50% ° A E fft 7T 3 4l 12 4 B 1R (A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEREREBR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
EE20219F12A31HIFFE
2021
20215
Notes HK$'000
B 55 TR
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHELECRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BrFLATE R
Adjustments for: ENIES =Rk

Realised gains from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net

Unrealised loss/(gain) from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net

Losses on disposal of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Amortisation

Depreciation

Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition
of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing

BAREFABS 2R

BEEZEERS

HER 11 (80,101)
BARBEFABRZZEM

BEZREEEE/

(Yez) @ F58 11 67,458
HERAREGTAEM

cEREZERTIAEZ

g} 8 24,326
5 11 2,098
e 11 20,585
L= D %N 10 479,617
U BE — B B A R M E(E

BE W 8 (131,380)

HE —RHB AR Z W 8
BN ERNRE e

(GFARED)]

interest in an associate NE RS 2 W 8 -
Gain on disposal of an assodiate k=l RN el 8 -
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 REMEWFHIEZ
receivables WA EE 9 28,671
Impairment loss on goodwil & RERERE 8 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEERAEREE 8 30,244
Impairment loss on finance lease EHmERE 2
receivables REE R 9 3,009
Impairment loss on loans receivables JEWE R 7 R EE 5 9 356,875
Bank interest income RITA B A 7 (15,363)
Compensation income EWA 8 =
Share of results of associates FEMREEE AR EE 21 (11,286)
Operating cash flows before movements HEECEBAET
in working capital KEREME 602,473
Increase in loans receivables B FRIE N (1,257,510)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRZSREE
through profit or loss 0 (11,684,955)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FEY B E TR &R 478,829
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 &E M EYEIE(E M),
receivables Ve (190,332)
Increase in cash held on behalf of clients BREESFHIGM (13,336)
Increase in other payables and accruals H b T FRIA & B R T ROE
b=l 5,208
Cash used in operations WEMA RS (12,059,623)
Tax paid [RENEAE] (1,736)
Net cash used in operating activities KRR IR 55 (12,061,359)
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2020
20204
HK$'000
FAET

(3,265)

(525,444)

(276,931)

7,178
8,795
18,476
403,183

628,345
(763,982)

(3,643,987)
557,534

84,351
(1,779)

60,059

(3,079,459)
(40,867)

(3,120,326)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
ReRERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES REZBE4A2BRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BE Z 12 - BB & R 17 (54,167) (5,197)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEAREBZ
plant and equipment FriS5/18 17 59 21
Additions of intangible assets NEBTEE 20 (2,242) (23,013)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) resulting from WHEKBATIEELZIRS
acquisition of subsidiaries WA CRe i )48 36 7,702 (19,972)
Net cash outflow resulting from disposal of & — [ EBAFEE 2
a subsidiary B F5E 36 (152,103) -
Addition of an associate ANE B E QT (48,976) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — B A RIS RUE = 300
Received from associates AL =N E ] = 31,732
Withdrawal/placement) of restricted cash B () ZESIRE 84,720 (23,435)
Bank interest income received BRI TH B A 15,363 30,347
Purchases of finandial assets at fair value BEERAREFAEMER
through other comprehensive income W72 &R EE (5,331,299) (4,058,285)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets to &R AL B AHMEE
fair value through other comprehensive Wz 2 £ R E EFTSHRIE
income 4,340,065 2,069,832
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERARBFABEZS/M
at fair value through profit or loss BETSHIAE 11,309,951 309,978
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & & EBIESE (TR )2
activities He R 10,169,073 (1,687,692)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES BiESEBIEA 2 RERE
Interest paid BERFE (486,933) (507,818)
New borrowings raised HigEE 5,813,815 2,013,908
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (3,289,248) (1,555,624)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHERE (15,461) (12,901)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BATEFFISRIE 31 3,885,290 6,587,757
Repayment of bonds BEEES 31 (7,379,626) (4,688,937)
Distribution to holders of perpetual capital A7k B E AT EFAE A DR
instrument 34 (300,400) (300,434)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing B & R8N (FTA), B4 2
activities REF5E (1,772,563) 1,535,951
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEYROFR
EQUIVALENTS (EXITRIENY  (3,272,067)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  F#I 2 IR & KIRESEY
of the year 5,045,748 8,214,075
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERFE) o8 (46,599) 103,740
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZEERRLSEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 28 1,334,300 5,045,748

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Bt 2 B 5 #8 Bk 4R & B 75 ¥R 3% &9 48 Bk 3B
consolidated financial statements. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

142

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (the
“Company"”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company are Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and 17/F.,
Agricultural Bank of China Tower, 50 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engaged in various kinds of financial services, including
standard investment business, non-standard investment
business, industrial investment and the provision of licensed
financial services.

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when

otherwise indicated.

NAEH

FELEaREReREEEGR QA
(ITARRAB DT —KPRBAREETMK
NZ2ERRERBERAT  ERODRE
BBMERZFAERAR([ERA])
EW o ARAzHMBEERSE
X B & ¥ B9 5l R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda & &8 T 5 & 50
RHBRERITREI7IE ©

ARARRERERABD REWME A
Al(REIAEE D TERETRE
B SRR - BREELCRER
% ERERERE EXRER
REERERBRS -

AEBEERYBHREIMEE 2R
BIERZEECKEMEIERR
REZER([WEEE DFE - &
afBHmERLAET(TET]) S
R BLMBREARAZNEES
ME=BEAI  MBEREHAER
ERELZ THB(TET) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest rate benchmark reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - phase 2

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent concessions

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June
2021. The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

FE RN E] RAEIEET BB M
HELEA(HRMBREE
EUND)

A R B 2 3 AT RS
AT EBES RS 2R
AEBRAFEEREBUTHE
ERHBAG([EEGHDRE])
Bt 2 58] RASE A B B R &
28

BEMBREERENN - BEENRRE

BAGTERFE395 - -E-RE
BERBRERAETH
BAYMBRE LM ER
RERUHRE LR
F165% (BT AX)

BEMBRELNS 6% METREEH
CHEN) BHEERR

AN AEBMBIREEMNBT BT
WMEEAFEI65 (IBFTA)2021F
6 H 30 H # 19 37 2 73 44 5 & 16 B 1
2B o RANFE R REE
FIRAMBRELEREAFE KB
TFEEAEENMBARARRRE
R/ RZEGREMERETEHEE
EHBEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEH

M REERT BRI

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WREZA (BB KREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (conTinueD) Al l)#)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but BB 1 R E R 2 #E] RS

not yet effective BB KR ELER

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEWEEAERA T EEHBE

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet HARER T RCETEBYB

effective: WE AR -

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the conceptual ABYBREERENE  HERN
framework' (BFIA) it

Amendments to Sales or contribution of assets between BENBREENZ 0% REZAEBENAN

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint REAGIEAERE ARLECENEE
venture® SCHES LERTE’

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts and the related REUBREENZETR RREDREBET
amendments (1B3T7)

Annual improvements to Annual improvements to BRUBREERZEE 2018522020581

HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020" ¢ ZEEME

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or BRQHENE 1R BEENEATENH
non-current and related amendments SCHES RYRABREES
to Hong Kong interpretation 5 $(20205 ) 2 1B
(2020y CHE

Amendments to HKAS Tand  Disclosure of accounting policies? ABEHENEIRE  ESHERORE

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 EENBREEAER
EEYEACHES)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates? BiEaeElEL SHEHNER
(BFT%K)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and BB e ENE12% BE-QHMELRE
liabilities arising from a single (BFIA) ERABBEBMEL
transaction? HE’

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment - BB GHENE16% NE - BRRRE : fER
proceeds before intended use' (1B3TR) ERBAZ A

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a BB EHEAE3TH REAN-BTakZ
contract' (fB3TR) KA

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

MR2022F1ATBRZERIENFED
RAERK -
MN2023F1ATAKZ B FRIRZFEH
ESVE
PEFE BEIsk 2 B AR FE R AR

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of AAREETEHEAMBHIEE
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material BRI BAMBRELBRATER R
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the KT GHGEMBRREEEKX
foreseeable future. FE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
mE

For the

PR M (&)

year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and

the Group’s interests in associates.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for the investment
property and certain financial instruments which are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

ERSTBE
aREA

REMBREDBREMEBEANE
B BREEN(LA—ERE B
FEEREEGTMAGEMOAT
EEAMERNSEMEHREER -
EEgtER([EHgTEA]) &
28)  FBERARETRAURAAK
FIEBEERER - WEMBHHREMN
BTEEHARSHMARDAES
ETARANT EMAA D EROEE
X - AEBARABHEZ SR
FRBWOT :

mAEE

HE2021F12A3MHZFE 2446
PHHRERBEANAQRREKNB R A
AR AREB R E AR 2 o

pu

RAVBHRERCRELKAEER
BoEREMERETERIAD
REBRESMROLAEFTE W1
NPT e At R P o

JESE AR — iR E R B BUE an S AR
BN ZRENRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS

36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments and the investment property which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique

equals the transaction price.

EREFEER#)

MmBLELYE ()

ARERTH2EENTERRE
BFXSHHEEEMBEREER
BEMXMNZER Mm% ER
ELRERBEMSRERREME
ERMERAE - EEFEEXE
B2 RAER  WHI52EERE
ERYEHEEXRRATERS
BEERRBEZEFR  RAEEE
BRERH - AAREFER &L
BEMS  AGREMBHREAZA
REHRHEEETE  HEFEWH
WEERE2FUKD BERNHE
BAZARD SERTRNZS
BAEMBHREENFI6REBBEARNZ
HERS UREXABREERZ
BREYFAREZFEPNEES
FAEAERFREZ BB FELE
BB ERFEIREERE ZER
BE)RRIN

BRRAANERSEAERMNAEE
HEERATABRER ABEBITER
RENERTARRENEMS -
e ZEETEETREREEY
PRERENEENIERENR S
E#E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included with Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has the power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use the power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

J rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-

controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition

of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the
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year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no

further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase

gain.

EREFEER#)

EBAHREEWE

BEMEAERR
H2020F1 A1 AEEJRE
NBEIBERXGEEEAEERERE
A REHAKE —HES R
BERABWIFR—HEBIEMIT
i o MEATINEBREENARBERK
HoWERTE—AHREES—
HEEUHENEES - AIFEES
EAR FE2BEETRERS
EBEcEEY  BECHBEERSA
BEEMEBEEEFEELECHE - M
REEFREAR  ZEAETHREE
WEERWIFR—EEBKRBAE
PRI o

BEWRE
EARBBBE-HITIEREHZE
ERBER  AEBEELRZFTE

ERBEEBZAAEBHREERE
RzemEE SRAE  BEE?
REBEAMEE Z2HEY2AERKE
BEENGBEOREEMAHRNE
EREE - Ficn R EE
ZERIAI BB EERAEERE -
AR A BELEHENEERE

SRS

W

FEILESREMEBRAGRAT 2021 £, 151
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or

loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

BEBRETHER£)

EBAHREEWB(E)

REEOf
EBWBIRBUREEAR - R
BaHBRIREBERZARENE -
DA ERAKREERCEE A%
BURKBEL 2NEEAMELZ
BERAEERIBRFWIETT 2 &
HlERETZEREREERRZA
fRfERM - BWESEHEAR KA
—RREERRBRTER -

BRETHRBEI - FTKRIE 2T
REERMEEZABEVENER
RV HBmEK 2ER(R2010
FI0AWY B HMERELEL)
TEERBEZES °

RKERH - R Z T35 & E
HEAAEZAERESNEE R H
ZARERER - ETHIEE RS

e ERMEBEEEXBEBENEESR
BB ABEREED
AIREFB G ERFE 1257
RAERBEEERE195%E
BEFERLE

o HRWUWIET ARG RERE
1 3R %2 k3 A3 B 48 BB 07 A
B AERN KL BEMAT L
ZAREB AR B ER A
RHZABRBATARES
B EERNE 25 AR 73
E A AR B 8T AT

= .
£

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFTHE#)
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is

made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period

adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and measured
under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the

previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts

recognised at that date.

EREFEER#)

EBaUREEWB(E)

HMEBE IR TK » RIAKHE
BEMFAERBBET ZRESEN
AEEWEAR(NAEEBESET
BER)ZARE  MAEEZKE
FBE(MA)ERNBERRHMEE
Was (AEm ) R - MAKEEER
BHESLAFAE ZBE  EMER
H b 2 T UQ 25 RR AR 1R B 8 B %
HEEQESRAENNUEE B HIA
REBBIOREMELEZSHE -
AR BRI EEAR

MEBAHZVNTETRERE G
BEZHERRERTK - AR
BEHARTKEFREEZRBEZE
TR ZEFETLBERNHEY
AR EXO)AFELEPRHE - AL
REBEIEEHAEE - URBRAHATEE
RUHE R EIC 7 MR AT A BE &2
EZRCERRAZHEBEEERR
M2 FER o

FEILESReMERBR AR 2021 F£3f 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU") (or groups
of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or
group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGU).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within the
CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGU), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGU) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost plus additional capital
contribution, less any identified impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate that has not been classified as held
for sale continues to be accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal or partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the

disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that

are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract

are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

(i) Consultancy services income and handling fee
income
Consultancy services income represents income derived
from advisory and consultancy services provided for
customers, including but not limited, as the followings:

a)  provision of advisory services on financial leasing

and trading platform structure;

b) provision of advisory services on transaction
arrangements; and

Q) financial taxation analysis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BRI EE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214F12F31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREHHE#E)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REFZFEHNWE(E)
(i) Consultancy services income and handling fee (i) BRERBEBRARFHEENUA(E)

162

income (Continued)

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding service
is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the
cost of a continuing service to. In such case, the fee is
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
the costs or risk are incurred or is accounted for as

income.

(ii) Finance lease income (ii)
The income under financial leasing is recognised in the
consolidated income statement using the effective
interest rate implicit in the lease over the term of the

lease.

(iii) Dividend and distribution income (iii)
Dividend and distribution income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income (iv)
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

(v) Online new media services income (v)
Online investment and technology-enabled lending
services income and online new media services income is

recognised when the related services are provided.

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

& M AT T2 (AR B IR 7S B 1
B MR W EVE TS 2 TR A A
& SR B AR AR 75 2 A AR A
BRON - FEUIBERT - BARE
RS E R 2 & 5t B R R
RWATAIRSBUA -

AEHERA

AR E WA T M 8 A
EMBEOTRESNERNX
EHFEEWRmRAER -

KER7IRKA
FLEMHRERE RDIRKALE
e BRI B 45 B LB T T LA BE

27
u/mm °

EHEREBRBBANEZRE
B RR (B R BB I RERR o

FIE WA

F) B AR FE 5T B A E BRI
KAFI ARG S T AEB
AER A AEES IR
MRECREEREFEZN

AR E R
ERRELRMEESEFR RS
L UNSEERFERY S YL N
RIBHAER R R R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(vi) Management income from fund investment
Revenue from asset management services is recognised
over time as the services are provided. Fees for asset
management services are calculated based on a fixed
percentage of the value of assets managed and deducted
from the customer’s account balance on a regular basis as

mutually agreed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee
valuation day of the managed accounts when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance period
and it is determined that it will not result in significant
reversal in a subsequent period, taking into consideration
the relevant basis of calculation for the managed
accounts. Performance fees, if any, are deducted from
the customer’s account balance on a regular basis as

mutually agreed.

(vii) Provision of securities brokerage services
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the customer has obtained control of the service,

generally when the trades are executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
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BRI EE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-

lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentive received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to investments in debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. Any difference between
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if

the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to

terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment; or

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular

contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net

investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to assess whether sale and leaseback

transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements of
HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group as
a buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises a finance lease receivable equal to the transfer

proceeds within the scope HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

172

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the

heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

EREFEER#)

HNEE ()

IERAMBHRERZEINTAME -
AEEBINEBZEERABER
BEPRRTEXRE[IAKEZ
2HEE(AET) - HIA MK
XRZHEz FHERBE - BRIE
RZHEZEXFHRBRE it
FERAT  BERBRXZHERZBITE
KoEAZEAZR(MA)REA
PEHWEER  TRERPUER
FEHEERE -

RHEEENEBR(BIEERERRE
NEB 2B P RKEY
BREEIINEBN—HNBAR ZE
s HE  HHEBREEINED
ZHERT B ER(HRE R
KE—ESBMEE)) K BRARXF
HEABRLZEBGMNERANRG
CHEERZHEFHDEETELR -

NP IEZ REtER ZBIERN
AEARER S MY TRIEBEA
FERR - ZRPTA R M B & (F140
MOHEBRERR XA LERIEL
REBAREBEREEAFEN) &
I nhz Rt ERLZRBEH D

*EE]Egﬁ o

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the
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year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in

the other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended

to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
PRC, the subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the municipal
government contribution scheme whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the scheme for the retirement benefit
of eligible employees. The municipal government of the PRC is
responsible for the entire benefit obligations payable to the
retired employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions
required by the scheme. The Group’s contributions to the
scheme are expensed as incurred.
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EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker (“CODM") for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share

options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium account. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted by facts and circumstances.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment properties
are depreciable and are held within the context of a business
model whose objective is to substantially consume over time
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties,
rather than through sale, except for freehold land, which is

always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214F12F31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREHHE#E)
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued) HE(E)
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except BRI IBE IR m R - 1
when they relate to items that are recognised in other HENHEME2EWB S BEERE
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the mRERZEBEBBERIN it
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other BRAT  BEREEREBETE D A
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where S EL At 2 TH WA 5 Bk B B R A PR
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for Roo i BNEARE IR SR E R I Ty | 5
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the BaMz X EstREmMES - 8l
accounting for the business combination. MEBEFZEFAEBGEHcatER
aa

Property, plant and equipment M~ BERHZME
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that held for ME BELRERBERSEERHE
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for BV RGIAREEENMBEA
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated WEREE RN REERFH
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent ERHEZRFARMEREE(INE)RE
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated B BRRRIIE o
impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets WERAEGERER  UREEA
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using {5 P34 B 8 & B A AR B R 8RB
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual B AerrERATH - FgpEEK
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of WEHERNSREBHRERN - Wik
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in TEEEEAREAETEHNTE -
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rate are as follows: FEFMEMT -
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the HEMERE EHEEFHL20%

lease terms or 20% (ABFEE RE)
Furniture, fixtures and 10%-20% B KER 10%%E20%

office equipment NI

Motor vehicles 20%-30% "E 20%%E30%
Building 4% BF 4%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the year which the asset is
derecognised and such amount is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being

constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development at the end of
the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment

property is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities is recognised if, and only if, all of the

following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or

sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable

to the intangible asset during its development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, on the

same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as

their cost).
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EE2021F12A31HILF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised

in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are test
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an

indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the

recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs,
with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me R BRRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (CGU or a group of CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is

material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot

be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is

probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a closed member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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the entity and Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
apart, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless
of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

192

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 or initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

0

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer

credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)
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Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of
these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to other comprehensive income without
reducing the carrying amounts of these debt instruments.
The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and

will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE2021F12A31HILF/Z
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest, dividend
or distribution earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “Fair value gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, net” line item in profit or

loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, loans receivables, finance lease
receivables, restricted cash, cash held on behalf of clients, cash
and cash equivalents and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
except for those from margin clients. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances or
credit-impaired and/or collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()
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Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
the date that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group
considers changes in the risk of a default occurring on
the loan to which a loan commitment relates; for
financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default
on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B E20214F12F31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

EFE2021F12A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EARETTHEE)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EEEERE(E)
(i ~ Credit-impaired financial assets iy EERESREE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit loss.

204  China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

TREEE-HINLENE
HF(HEZEMEEMRTARKER
EREBKTNEE) RLER
HIBEERE 2REEMLR
FERENEEREREBRTI
SRR EBREUE

(@) BITARIEHA M EAD
;

(b) ERAE K (E DK E
B

(0 EFRANERARERE
KA R L HERE 4R
f 1 [ 8 SR A BE R B R A
TERTE